
Table of Contents 
 

Agenda 

VCUDA 

Consolidated Communications 

WCVT 

Southern Vermont CUD 

ECFiber 

NEK Broadband 

Otter Creek 

Lamoille Fibernet CUD 



Vermont Community Broadband Board Meeting 
Tuesday, July 28, 2023, 8:00am – 12:00pm 

AGENDA
Meeting is being held virtually.  
Click here to join the meeting

Join by Phone; +1 802-828-7667, 494812198#  
Note: there may be executive sessions as needed 

8:00 1) Meeting Call to Order, Roll Call, Approval of Agenda 

8:05 2) Accountability Policy – Patty Richards 

10:45 3) Public Comment 

11:00 4) Executive Session - Confidential Executive Director Review – Patty Richards - 
“the appointment or employment or evaluation of a public officer or employee, 
provided that the public body shall make a final decision to hire or appoint a 
public officer or employee in an open meeting and shall explain the reasons for 
its final decision during the open meeting” 1 V.S.A. § 313(a)(3)  

11:55 5) Parking Lot – Christine Hallquist 

12:00 6) Confirm Next Regular Meeting 8/14, & Motion to Adjourn 

Press inquiries: please contact Herryn Herzog, herryn.herzog@vermont.gov (802) 522-
3396. 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZjVjNzJkNDQtMzkzMy00MGE4LWI4ZmYtMmMzOTNjYzBmMmJl%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2220b4933b-baad-433c-9c02-70edcc7559c6%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22605bace0-882e-4a4b-a840-042a6319db89%22%7d
tel:+18028287667,,494812198
mailto:herryn.herzog@vermont.gov


From: Rob Vietzke
To: Patty Richards
Cc: VCBB - Info; Fish, Robert; VCUDA Execs & Reps
Subject: VCUDC Comments on Policy Draft
Date: Tuesday, July 25, 2023 11:17:53 AM
Attachments: VCUDA July 25 VCBB Letter.pdf

EXTERNAL SENDER: Do not open attachments or click on links unless you recognize
and trust the sender.
Dear Patty and VCBB Team,

VCUDA is pleased to provide comments on the draft policies discussed in last week's VCBB Meeting.

Since the meeting, CUD representatives met several times and have had a number of 1-1
conversations. The complexities of reaching consensus on these complicated issues did not allow us
to finalize specific comments by today. However, we were able to begin the process of
understanding perspectives and potential solutions.

We look forward to coming to the table with the VCBB Board, Staff and CUD’s to complete these
policies in the coming months.

Best,

Rob

mailto:programcoordinator@vcuda.org
mailto:prichards213@gmail.com
mailto:VCBB.Info@vermont.gov
mailto:Robert.Fish@vermont.gov
mailto:vcuda-execs-and-reps@vcuda.org



VCUDA
Vermont Communications Union Districts Association
www.vcuda.org


Patty Richards, Chair


Vermont Community Broadband Board July 25, 2023


Dear Patty,


As a follow up to the VCBB’s Tuesday, July 18th meeting and discussions about draft policies, the


Vermont Communications Union Districts Association has had several group discussions this


week that led us to better understand many complexities and differing opinions about the draft.


It is our belief that extensive conversations are required to better match the auditors’ findings,


the Board’s grant administration authorities and Act 79’s creation of the bottom-up CUD


structure for accountability across Vermont. We agree that this work is important and ideally


would have been completed some time ago. It is also true that we now understand that we


have more work to do to set a framework that sets policies for VCBB areas of responsibility and


a framework for CUD responsibilities. We also believe this will take substantial conversation to


coalesce on an approach, which would be the wrong singular priority for the Board, the Staff


and the CUDs with the pending BEAD planning deadlines. It is essential we collectively have our


best minds working on BEAD and that the collaboration is positive, even as this policy discussion


proves to be more complicated.


Much of our limited strategic capacity has been consumed by this draft since its release and we


have now missed two critical weeks in shaping Vermont’s program for BEAD with deadlines fast


approaching. To be clear, reaching a workable framework is unquestionably important, but


proper implementation of the BEAD program is strategic and immediate. A failure to have our


best minds across our teams fully engaged, together, in strategic discussions about the


formation of the BEAD program could lead to irrevocable mistakes in the competitive process


for the upcoming $229M program and Vermont’s Broadband future. While we continue to work


on these processes, it is also critical we recognize the fixed BEAD timeline and the criticality of


submitting a fully developed Volume II plan.


Our strong suggestion is that the Board task a working group including CUDs, Staff and Board


Members to engage with each other and work through these policies as a team with a goal of



http://www.vcuda.org/





VCUDA
Vermont Communications Union Districts Association
www.vcuda.org


presenting a draft later this year or early in 2024. This timeline necessarily allows us to prioritize


BEAD in August, September, and October when it must command the majority of Board, Staff


and CUD attention. During this time, the Board, the Staff and the CUDs must prioritize joint


strategic discussion on the myriad of policy issues in BEAD, how the remaining ARPA funds


support BEAD, and any necessary legislation required to allow BEAD implementation to


complement, and not undermine, Vermont’s universal service strategies.


This prioritization and parallelization of effort assures that BEAD is planned to complement


existing Act 71 programs and that it achieves the ambitious goal of universal service with world


class fixed broadband. This approach also assures the most efficient and strategic use of limited


people and funds and assures that policies then set by the Board can support both ARPA and


BEAD programs.


While BEAD must take some attention in the coming weeks, we can still get the working groups


underway and begin to hear each others’ concerns in anticipation that we will be able to fully


engage in this once the BEAD Volume 2 proposal is crafted, reviewed, and submitted. We are


ready and eager to engage in this properly prioritized and strategic approach.


Best,


Robert P Vietzke, Program Director


11/24/23
Page 2



http://www.vcuda.org/





VCUDA
Vermont Communications Union Districts Association
www.vcuda.org


Supplemental Discussion support:


In reviewing the draft policies, the CUD’s identified a number of areas where the draft policies


are likely to create problems for one or more CUD. While the specifics of the problematic


language differ from CUD to CUD and from section to section, CUDs consistently had material


concerns about the prescriptive nature of some recommendations and the likely resulting


unintended consequences. There were three larger themes that emerged:


1. There are areas in the draft where the language is imprecise and could be


interpreted as leading to major policy changes or new material regulatory approach for


the VCBB and future grants. These may not have been intended but need to be clarified.


We can readily detail these areas in the working group(s) as they are established. We


would urge the Board to take the time to listen to the experts among the CUDs with


direct Broadband operations, finance and policy experiences to adjust this language and


assure it does not create legal problems and unintended consequences in haste to


complete this policy task.


2. Act 71 recognizes the role of CUDs in ensuring accountability and does not place sole


responsibility for accountability on the VCBB. We think the VCBB should hear from CUDs


how they are fulfilling their responsibilities. Act 71 and 79 place a significant portion of


public accountability at the municipal level with the CUD and not with the State or the


VCBB. We would like the Board’s policy to acknowledge the multi-layer solution created


in Act 79 and Act 71, where the Board issues and manages infrastructure grants, the


CUDs own public property and maintains public accountability, and the CUDs engage


with private sector partners to accomplish work.


The legislation is clear that CUDs exist to address market failure and recognizes the


market has failed in different ways in different places in Vermont. The intent of Act 71


recognized a bottom up and grass roots solution adopted by the state as the strategy for


solving the rural broadband crisis after the success demonstrated by ECFiber following


11/24/23
Page 3



http://www.vcuda.org/





VCUDA
Vermont Communications Union Districts Association
www.vcuda.org


2015’s Act 41 and 2019’s Act 79. Together, the legislature placed the municipal CUD


entity at the center of many activities and accountability requirements necessary to


adapt to those local realities. That is the plan and design of Act 79 and Act 71. It is


important therefore for the VCBB to consider its role in setting policies accordingly and


to avoid overreaching beyond its role as the granting agency into a role of regulator or


administrator.


In “Findings and Intent” of Act 71, the legislature was clear about the role that CUDs play


in leading public accountability:


“(13) Communications union districts (CUDs) were created by the State to


coordinate and implement creative and innovative solutions in their respective


territories, particularly where existing providers are not providing adequate


service that meets the needs of their residents and businesses while ensuring


public accountability.


(14) CUDs are thus positioned to be the unofficial “provider of last resort” for


broadband and ensure public accountability for serving all Vermonters within


their respective service territories.”


While it is implicit in all government functions that the public trust must be supported,


there is nothing in the legislation that says the VCBB’s authority supersedes the


accountability requirements placed on the CUD municipality. Instead, the legislation


establishes the VCBB to coordinate and facilitate, to provide resources, to provide


grants, to facilitate partnerships in support of the CUDs and their autonomous


operations. In this context, the VCBB could play a critical role in helping the CUDs


develop policies, but many of the draft policies as written, particularly in the “implied


responsibility” portion of the draft, are misplaced at the State level and would be more


appropriately implemented at the CUD level. Nonetheless, we welcome the VCBB’s


support, in its development and support role to help us craft policies that support


Vermonters.


11/24/23
Page 4



http://www.vcuda.org/





VCUDA
Vermont Communications Union Districts Association
www.vcuda.org


3. While it is certain that both the CUDs and the VCBB have their own separate


responsibilities to ensure accountability to the public interests of Vermonters, VCUDA


believes that grant accountability should be about ensuring specific outcomes (ie:


broadband availability) rather than setting rules that constrain the paths to achieve


those outcomes. We are concerned that there are instances where the draft appears to


move beyond grant accountability and into long term regulation and operational


management. The current draft does not assume VCBB’s time-limited role, does not


recognize where federal preemption may apply, and does not include other Vermont


agencies that may have more appropriate mandates for long term regulatory


responsibility.


4. Given the volume of work before us to implement the requirements that are set


in the Law, the additional areas of “implied accountability” proposed may not be timely.


We would strongly encourage the VCBB to focus on fulfilling its explicit responsibilities


before reaching into new areas that are not explicitly supported.


We look forward to engaging more deeply with the Board and Staff as we review these draft


policies and begin to sort through the appropriate roles for the state and the CUDs as directed


by Act 71.


11/24/23
Page 5



http://www.vcuda.org/





VCUDA
Vermont Communications Union Districts Association
www.vcuda.org

Patty Richards, Chair

Vermont Community Broadband Board July 25, 2023

Dear Patty,

As a follow up to the VCBB’s Tuesday, July 18th meeting and discussions about draft policies, the

Vermont Communications Union Districts Association has had several group discussions this

week that led us to better understand many complexities and differing opinions about the draft.

It is our belief that extensive conversations are required to better match the auditors’ findings,

the Board’s grant administration authorities and Act 79’s creation of the bottom-up CUD

structure for accountability across Vermont. We agree that this work is important and ideally

would have been completed some time ago. It is also true that we now understand that we

have more work to do to set a framework that sets policies for VCBB areas of responsibility and

a framework for CUD responsibilities. We also believe this will take substantial conversation to

coalesce on an approach, which would be the wrong singular priority for the Board, the Staff

and the CUDs with the pending BEAD planning deadlines. It is essential we collectively have our

best minds working on BEAD and that the collaboration is positive, even as this policy discussion

proves to be more complicated.

Much of our limited strategic capacity has been consumed by this draft since its release and we

have now missed two critical weeks in shaping Vermont’s program for BEAD with deadlines fast

approaching. To be clear, reaching a workable framework is unquestionably important, but

proper implementation of the BEAD program is strategic and immediate. A failure to have our

best minds across our teams fully engaged, together, in strategic discussions about the

formation of the BEAD program could lead to irrevocable mistakes in the competitive process

for the upcoming $229M program and Vermont’s Broadband future. While we continue to work

on these processes, it is also critical we recognize the fixed BEAD timeline and the criticality of

submitting a fully developed Volume II plan.

Our strong suggestion is that the Board task a working group including CUDs, Staff and Board

Members to engage with each other and work through these policies as a team with a goal of

http://www.vcuda.org/


VCUDA
Vermont Communications Union Districts Association
www.vcuda.org

presenting a draft later this year or early in 2024. This timeline necessarily allows us to prioritize

BEAD in August, September, and October when it must command the majority of Board, Staff

and CUD attention. During this time, the Board, the Staff and the CUDs must prioritize joint

strategic discussion on the myriad of policy issues in BEAD, how the remaining ARPA funds

support BEAD, and any necessary legislation required to allow BEAD implementation to

complement, and not undermine, Vermont’s universal service strategies.

This prioritization and parallelization of effort assures that BEAD is planned to complement

existing Act 71 programs and that it achieves the ambitious goal of universal service with world

class fixed broadband. This approach also assures the most efficient and strategic use of limited

people and funds and assures that policies then set by the Board can support both ARPA and

BEAD programs.

While BEAD must take some attention in the coming weeks, we can still get the working groups

underway and begin to hear each others’ concerns in anticipation that we will be able to fully

engage in this once the BEAD Volume 2 proposal is crafted, reviewed, and submitted. We are

ready and eager to engage in this properly prioritized and strategic approach.

Best,

Robert P Vietzke, Program Director

11/24/23
Page 2

http://www.vcuda.org/


VCUDA
Vermont Communications Union Districts Association
www.vcuda.org

Supplemental Discussion support:

In reviewing the draft policies, the CUD’s identified a number of areas where the draft policies

are likely to create problems for one or more CUD. While the specifics of the problematic

language differ from CUD to CUD and from section to section, CUDs consistently had material

concerns about the prescriptive nature of some recommendations and the likely resulting

unintended consequences. There were three larger themes that emerged:

1. There are areas in the draft where the language is imprecise and could be

interpreted as leading to major policy changes or new material regulatory approach for

the VCBB and future grants. These may not have been intended but need to be clarified.

We can readily detail these areas in the working group(s) as they are established. We

would urge the Board to take the time to listen to the experts among the CUDs with

direct Broadband operations, finance and policy experiences to adjust this language and

assure it does not create legal problems and unintended consequences in haste to

complete this policy task.

2. Act 71 recognizes the role of CUDs in ensuring accountability and does not place sole

responsibility for accountability on the VCBB. We think the VCBB should hear from CUDs

how they are fulfilling their responsibilities. Act 71 and 79 place a significant portion of

public accountability at the municipal level with the CUD and not with the State or the

VCBB. We would like the Board’s policy to acknowledge the multi-layer solution created

in Act 79 and Act 71, where the Board issues and manages infrastructure grants, the

CUDs own public property and maintains public accountability, and the CUDs engage

with private sector partners to accomplish work.

The legislation is clear that CUDs exist to address market failure and recognizes the

market has failed in different ways in different places in Vermont. The intent of Act 71

recognized a bottom up and grass roots solution adopted by the state as the strategy for

solving the rural broadband crisis after the success demonstrated by ECFiber following

11/24/23
Page 3

http://www.vcuda.org/


VCUDA
Vermont Communications Union Districts Association
www.vcuda.org

2015’s Act 41 and 2019’s Act 79. Together, the legislature placed the municipal CUD

entity at the center of many activities and accountability requirements necessary to

adapt to those local realities. That is the plan and design of Act 79 and Act 71. It is

important therefore for the VCBB to consider its role in setting policies accordingly and

to avoid overreaching beyond its role as the granting agency into a role of regulator or

administrator.

In “Findings and Intent” of Act 71, the legislature was clear about the role that CUDs play

in leading public accountability:

“(13) Communications union districts (CUDs) were created by the State to

coordinate and implement creative and innovative solutions in their respective

territories, particularly where existing providers are not providing adequate

service that meets the needs of their residents and businesses while ensuring

public accountability.

(14) CUDs are thus positioned to be the unofficial “provider of last resort” for

broadband and ensure public accountability for serving all Vermonters within

their respective service territories.”

While it is implicit in all government functions that the public trust must be supported,

there is nothing in the legislation that says the VCBB’s authority supersedes the

accountability requirements placed on the CUD municipality. Instead, the legislation

establishes the VCBB to coordinate and facilitate, to provide resources, to provide

grants, to facilitate partnerships in support of the CUDs and their autonomous

operations. In this context, the VCBB could play a critical role in helping the CUDs

develop policies, but many of the draft policies as written, particularly in the “implied

responsibility” portion of the draft, are misplaced at the State level and would be more

appropriately implemented at the CUD level. Nonetheless, we welcome the VCBB’s

support, in its development and support role to help us craft policies that support

Vermonters.

11/24/23
Page 4

http://www.vcuda.org/


VCUDA
Vermont Communications Union Districts Association
www.vcuda.org

3. While it is certain that both the CUDs and the VCBB have their own separate

responsibilities to ensure accountability to the public interests of Vermonters, VCUDA

believes that grant accountability should be about ensuring specific outcomes (ie:

broadband availability) rather than setting rules that constrain the paths to achieve

those outcomes. We are concerned that there are instances where the draft appears to

move beyond grant accountability and into long term regulation and operational

management. The current draft does not assume VCBB’s time-limited role, does not

recognize where federal preemption may apply, and does not include other Vermont

agencies that may have more appropriate mandates for long term regulatory

responsibility.

4. Given the volume of work before us to implement the requirements that are set

in the Law, the additional areas of “implied accountability” proposed may not be timely.

We would strongly encourage the VCBB to focus on fulfilling its explicit responsibilities

before reaching into new areas that are not explicitly supported.

We look forward to engaging more deeply with the Board and Staff as we review these draft

policies and begin to sort through the appropriate roles for the state and the CUDs as directed

by Act 71.

11/24/23
Page 5

http://www.vcuda.org/


                                     

 
1 
 

Confidential and Proprietary. © 2021 Consolidated Communications, Inc. All rights reserved. 

 

VCBB Draft Accountability Policies – Consolidated Communications’ Comments  
 
 

No organization has done more to bring best in class fiber internet service to more Vermonters than 

Consolidated Communications. We have invested more than $94 million dollars, building high speed fiber 

internet service to more than 119,000 homes—5% (nearly 6,000 addresses) of which were unserved or 

underserved before we invested our own capital to serve them.  This is like one extra CUD worth of 

unserved/underserved customers now served at little cost to the State, or approximately 10% of the problem 

the VCBB is attempting to address.  

 

Part of this investment included our new product, Fidium Fiber, the best and most affordable broadband 

product in the state—often half the price of service from smaller providers (See the affordability Exhibit at 

the end of these comments). While we know we are not perfect, our improvement is clear in the 

numbers.  Our PUC complaint volume is down 75% over the last 5 years, and our Net Promoter Score, a 

reliable industry service benchmark, sits at 50 in an industry that often averages in the low single digits.  

 

In three months’ time, Southern Vermont CUD will be the first CUD in the state to be completely built. An 

amazing feat considering the headwinds we faced during the entire project. Through this build we will be 

delivering service to over 7,000 homes 16 months from grant award, a level of performance that far exceeds 

that of any other provider in Vermont, giving the residents of the Southern Vermont CUD the best and most 

affordable broadband services in the State.  

 

In light of all this progress, it was extremely difficult to watch the most recent VCBB meeting and read the 

new proposed requirements.  

 



                                     

 
2 
 

Confidential and Proprietary. © 2021 Consolidated Communications, Inc. All rights reserved. 

 

The proposed policy requirements, if enacted, would significantly limit our ability to invest in Vermont. The 

result will be higher costs to deploy broadband which would require more money than the state has 

available. This will not only leave portions of the state unserved but would leave served customers facing 

high prices and lower quality of service.   As observed by the state auditor, The VCBB has financed 5 

broadband startups which face significant risks--it is unlikely all 5 will succeed.  

 

This is unfortunate, since we are about to bring forth two less risky proposals which will solve the 

underserved problem for over 6,000 additional Vermonters in the next two years—including a contribution of 

nearly $14 million of our own capital to help achieve universal broadband service.  Our model is exposed to 

none of the risks in the State Auditor’s report and these grants represent sound public policy to meet the 

needs of Vermonters.  This investment will not happen if the Consolidated grants are subject to the proposed 

policy requirements. 

  

Through the introduction of the proposed accountability policy, the VCBB is vastly exceeding its statutory 

authority. The policies it seeks to impose with respect to service quality appear to be an attempt to make the 

VCBB the broadband regulatory agency. The problem is, the VCBB was not established to support this role. 

The VCBB, unlike other regulatory agencies, has no administrative rules and is not a quasi-judicial body. It has 

no way to allow for due process of those that are aggrieved by an action of the state or another party. The 

statutory role of the Vermont Community Broadband Board is clear, they are to “…coordinate, facilitate, and 

accelerate the deployment and implementation of Universal Community Broadband solutions” (30 VSA 

§8081). The VCBB exists to assist the CUDs in the deployment of high-quality, affordable, universal 

broadband service. All policies of the VCBB must be consistent with this statutory charge.  The Board has no 

authority to go further and insert themselves as the regulatory authority for broadband. To the extent the 

VCBB implements policies that either hinder the CUDs efficient and accelerated deployment, or worse, 



                                     

 
3 
 

Confidential and Proprietary. © 2021 Consolidated Communications, Inc. All rights reserved. 

 

completely stop broadband deployment in portions of Vermont, the Board is acting in direct conflict with the 

duties assigned to it by the Vermont legislature. 

 

Through its proposed policies, the VCBB also seeks to establish a lien on CUD property. This is an 

unquestionable overreach. Act 71 provides that in the event a CUD dissolves that CUD property becomes the 

property of the State. This is a specific and appropriate way to ensure that public assets remain in the public 

domain in the event of a CUD collapse. Going beyond this is not permitted by statute and is also unnecessary.   

 

The authorizing statute provides the power to create policy in two very specific areas: 

The Board shall…have the power to…(E) develop policies or recommend to the General Assembly 
programs that promote a strong communications workforce in Vermont; (F) develop policies or 
recommend to the General Assembly programs that promote access to affordable broadband service 
plans;     

 

There is nothing in the authorizing statute that suggests the Board should or is even able to retain an interest 

in CUD infrastructure. It is not one of the two areas where the legislature indicates the VCBB should create 

policy.  It is quite different from the statutory mechanism to acquire CUD property.  The proposed policy will 

chill any private investment (either from financial institutions or private broadband providers). It is just bad 

policy.    

 

Finally, and perhaps most egregiously, the VCBB seeks through this proposed policy to mandate network 

architecture and design.  Current state design standards are NOT industry accepted, which gives us 

concern that any changes to those standards may not be an improvement and may saddle the state with 

additional costs, and bespoke networks out of step with best practice. There are no federal 

requirements at all for design standards.  The clear requirements are 100/100 speeds with low latency.  



                                     

 
4 
 

Confidential and Proprietary. © 2021 Consolidated Communications, Inc. All rights reserved. 

 

The state is right to demand this result, but not to mandate the design to get there.  Any design 

recognized by the industry and demonstrated effective at achieving both the speed and latency 

required, without any clear demonstration that a particular design does not meet those standards it 

should be accepted. Fidium’s network design is a clear prima facie case of successful design that already 

meets these performance standards and should be accepted based on current performance.  Requiring 

design changes to an expertly designed network currently performing is wasteful and is not a set of 

changes CCI will support. 

 

Ultimately, the Board’s role should be to review each proposal on its merits and the potential impact the 

proposal could have on the deployment of universal, affordable, high-quality broadband services. The 

members should reject any proposal that hinders, rather than promotes, the deployment of broadband and 

should similarly reject any effort to expand the role of the board beyond that which was decreed by the 

legislature. The Board is not a regulatory agency of the state with all the processes and procedures that come 

with the creation of these arms of government. It should not seek to become one through provisions 

attached to a grant program 

 

The proposed policies do not appear to take into account the needs of any particular CUD. Consolidated has 

been engaged in months of discussion with its partner CUDs regarding contract terms that address many of 

the issues the board is concerned about. The pronouncement of the VCBB policies and the application of 

them to the projects with Consolidated’s partner CUDs are prepared to submit is devastating to the future 

viability of these projects. The CUDs themselves, not the Board, are in the best position to understand and 

protect CUD interests. The Board should allow the CUDs flexibility to negotiate terms that are favorable to 



                                     

 
5 
 

Confidential and Proprietary. © 2021 Consolidated Communications, Inc. All rights reserved. 

 

the CUD and that focus on the CUD’s needs, as opposed to the desire of a few on the Board to treat particular 

partners in an unfavorable manner.   

 

We do see a path forward, despite the chilling effect of the current proposal.  Consolidated plans to listen 

carefully to the upcoming meeting on Friday, July 28th, and we expect the VCBB to re-affirm the guidance 

they provided to the CUDs in the April 10th meeting, which was to keep going and not let this policy debate 

get in the way of progress.  We then plan to submit two grant proposals which have been painstakingly 

negotiated with two different CUDs. These proposals include substantial capital contributions from 

Consolidated, they are in the best interest of residents of the two CUDs and they advance the goals of Act 71.  

We ask that the Board evaluate and approve these plans without future conditions from this current policy 

debate, which will take considerable time to settle.  In other words, evaluate these grants on the merits, and 

don’t hold them up with a lengthy policy debate.   

 

Last point, which maybe should be the first, is that the turnaround time of 7 days for such a substantial set of 

changes raises due process questions.  At no time has the VCBB reached out to discuss these issues, nor 

shared any preview of their thinking with us or as far as we are aware, any of the CUDs, the constituents the 

Board has been appointed to serve.  We are willing to discuss the proposals, but not in the context of the two 

grants we are submitting.  A fair path forward would be to debate these policies in the context of the BEAD 

program, which would allow all bidders a level playing field, rather than changing the rules in midstream.   

 

Sarah Davis 
Vice President, Legislative and Regulatory – Consolidated Communications 
7/25/2023 

   



                                     

 
6 
 

Confidential and Proprietary. © 2021 Consolidated Communications, Inc. All rights reserved. 

 

Affordability Exhibit (taken from CUD websites on July 1) 
 

  
  
 

 



From: Nishi, Roger
To: Fish, Robert
Subject: RE: Accountability Working Groups
Date: Monday, July 24, 2023 5:14:54 PM

EXTERNAL SENDER: Do not open attachments or click on links unless you recognize
and trust the sender.
Rob,
What is this? 348V?
Minutes suggestion – rather than using bullets, number or letter so that a specific point can be
referred to. 
Roger
 
IV.

Bullet 13, if I counted properly (also 6th bullet from the end)
Provide broadband service that complies with net neutrality and consumer protection standards. A
certification of each grantee annually that it meets the service conditions described in subsection
348B and subsequent section 348V. This is currently a voluntary consumer standard certification,
but we would like grant recipients to be obligated to make those certifications and incorporate in
the standards that are set for 348B for all of the lifetime of those assets. The subcommittee should
look more into the criteria and what is a reasonable indicator of service and also is enforceable
 
 

From: Nishi, Roger 
Sent: Monday, July 24, 2023 1:24 PM
To: Fish, Robert <Robert.Fish@vermont.gov>
Subject: RE: Accountability Working Groups
 
Perfect,
TY,
Roger
 

From: Fish, Robert <Robert.Fish@vermont.gov> 
Sent: Monday, July 24, 2023 1:21 PM
To: Nishi, Roger <rnishi@corp.wcvt.com>
Subject: RE: Accountability Working Groups
 
Hi Roger

Please see the minutes just posted. If you have specific feedback you would like in the board back,
please email it to me by noon tomorrow.

Draft Minutes
Video - https://youtu.be/Gt6LGcv0aro
 

mailto:rnishi@corp.wcvt.com
mailto:Robert.Fish@vermont.gov
mailto:Robert.Fish@vermont.gov
mailto:rnishi@corp.wcvt.com
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fpublicservice.vermont.gov%2Fdocument%2Fvcbb-draft-minutes-071823&data=05%7C01%7Crobert.fish%40vermont.gov%7Ca94793c8f425450c29a708db8c8b044b%7C20b4933bbaad433c9c0270edcc7559c6%7C0%7C0%7C638258300935357731%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=4OLXvYt3tRG%2FM6BEwggwqf%2FaAchtOG2ikZxdIOjXtBI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fyoutu.be%2FGt6LGcv0aro&data=05%7C01%7Crobert.fish%40vermont.gov%7Ca94793c8f425450c29a708db8c8b044b%7C20b4933bbaad433c9c0270edcc7559c6%7C0%7C0%7C638258300935357731%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9XqdZV8bV23ViZXPUgNWpsCTT1oifetJdJdw29YrRNA%3D&reserved=0


Draft policy - https://publicservice.vermont.gov/document/accountability-policy
 

From: Nishi, Roger <rnishi@corp.wcvt.com> 
Sent: Monday, July 24, 2023 1:20 PM
To: Fish, Robert <Robert.Fish@vermont.gov>
Subject: Accountability Working Groups
 
EXTERNAL SENDER: Do not open attachments or click on links unless you recognize and trust the
sender.
Rob,
Good afternoon,
There were times when I got pulled away from the VCBB meeting last week. What accountability
working groups did the Board create.
And were timelines discussed as to when the working groups had to have their work group
products?
Roger
 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fpublicservice.vermont.gov%2Fdocument%2Faccountability-policy&data=05%7C01%7Crobert.fish%40vermont.gov%7Ca94793c8f425450c29a708db8c8b044b%7C20b4933bbaad433c9c0270edcc7559c6%7C0%7C0%7C638258300935357731%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=OzfiHM6B%2FuPF8OtjeTG%2FWoMHDqi8V635%2Btu7VHiuWVo%3D&reserved=0
mailto:rnishi@corp.wcvt.com
mailto:Robert.Fish@vermont.gov


From: Eric Hatch
To: Richards, Patty
Cc: VCBB; Vermont CUD Association; Sheila Kearns; Michael Corey; Callie Fishburn; Jonathan Cooper
Subject: 2023 VCBB Accountability Policies - Comments from SoVt CUD
Date: Tuesday, July 25, 2023 11:56:40 AM

EXTERNAL SENDER: Do not open attachments or click on links unless you recognize
and trust the sender.
To: Patty Richards, Chair VCBB

I write to you as Chair of the Southern Vermont CUD (SoVt CUD) on proposed amendments
to the "VCBB Accountability Policies."  As these proposed revised rules do not pertain to our
2022 SoVt CUD agreement, it gives us a unique voice and perspective on their impact and
their unintended consequences for Act 71 fulfillment.  Our CUD is on track to be the first
CUD in the state to complete its Universal Service Plan (estimated to be year-end 2024) and
also on track to complete 99% of fiber coverage of that Plan by the end of this year. While our
experience and partnership differs from most CUDs, it need not differ for those other CUDs
considering the same public/private partnership model.  

It is with this earned experience that our CUD is troubled by several additions proposed to the
Accountability Policies, so much so that we believe that if such policies were in place in 2022,
our partnership with Consolidated Communications, or any other private, established service
provider, could not have come to fruition.  And had no partnership been possible, the hundreds
(soon thousands) of unserved and underserved in our District would not have high-speed fiber
that they have today.  Thus, the changes proposed are very impactful and not in a way to
promote the goals of Act 71 but rather to regulate which is an overreach of the mandates
prescribed to the VCBB in statute. 

Specifically, we have concerns with the following:

Section 2 - Industry Standards: adding to what are already outlined and established
industry standards, a seemingly arbitrary number of "99.9%" for "availability" is
included.  Availability can be defined, interpreted and measured in countless ways and
as such, is not a provision that is reasonable, let alone affordable, to put into contract. 
Further, requiring "Open Architecture" severely limits, if not blocks entirely, options for
CUDs to solve the rural broadband problem that Act 71 looks to solve.  

Section 3 - Recouping Costs: the provision of a 30-day cure to any term or condition,
large or small, at risk of losing 100% of the grant funding is draconian and a vague
condition that will not invite private investment.  While recouping state funding is vital,
this provision is too open-ended and too open for misuse.  

However, the most concerning provision is the VCBB's proposal to put a 20-year lien on
a CUD's assets.  Recouping assets is spelled out in several existing grant terms.  Adding
a 20-year lien will probably scare off any private investor not desperate for funding
(particularly publicly traded entities).  Our CUD could not have formed any partnership
with an established, reputable service provider with such a demand.  Our partnership has
shared public network assets with our partner's shared private assets that cannot be 
divided or partitioned and thus even a temporary lien, let alone a two-decade long one,
would not be accepted.  Without the ability for the CUD to form creative, cost-effective
partnerships and networks, our consumers will be the ones penalized with higher

mailto:chair@sovtcud.net
mailto:Patty.Richards@partner.vermont.gov
mailto:VCBB@vermont.gov
mailto:VCUDA@googlegroups.com
mailto:clerk@sovtcud.net
mailto:vice.chair@sovtcud.net
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=14288cbdbdcc42758d692a8cd20aad84-Guest_78b0a
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=userd1558532


monthly bills and a slower rollout with zero benefit to anyone. 

Section 6 - Appeal: A CUD should be able to appeal major decisions, such as revoking
funding, to a third-party entity.  The VCBB should have its own check on major
decisions otherwise the appeal process is an exercise in futility.  

Priority Section 7 - Include Multiple Service Providers: We question why this should be
a policy for VCBB.  Earlier policy statements indicated the need for CUDs to follow
best industry practices and this shared provider provision does not adhere to that.  If
CUDs want private investment, coming to a partnership with this provision will deter
providers, not attract them.

Section 8081 Item 1b: The text "VCBB Board will not accept self-certification by the
applicant or grantee to establish accountability for the public interest obligations of
construction and operation of assets paid for in whole or in part Community Broadband
Fund." is confusing as it provides no clarification on who will also measure
accountability, in addition to the certification of the CUD and who pays for that
additional requirement. 

In summary, this CUD feels the VCBB Board is focusing much of its time on control and
regulation that will drive private investment away from CUDs who wish to go that route,
rather than looking to see what models are proving to be successful and learning lessons from
them to further the goals of Act 71.  Our CUD has much to offer based on our experience of
having gone through the grant allocation process, working with private investment and most
importantly, providing universal access faster and for less cost less than most, if not all other
CUDs.  Lastly, I am sure CUDs will accept these conditions if passed as proposed - they have
little other recourse.  As a CUD that can comment freely, without the onus of having to go
before the Board for major funding, it is imperative that we do so lest unserved and under-
served Vermont residents potentially lose out on material private investment that will get them
the fiber access they rightfully deserve.  

With kind regards,

Eric Hatch
Chair, Southern Vermont CUD

Please note that this communication and any response to it will be maintained as
a public record and may be subject to disclosure under the Vermont Public Records Act.



From: F. X. Flinn - ECFiber Chair
To: Richards, Patty
Cc: Fish, Robert; Clithero, Toni; VCUDA
Subject: ECFiber comments regarding VCBB policy discussion
Date: Tuesday, July 25, 2023 10:41:52 AM
Attachments: VCBF Grant Clawback Concerns.docx

EXTERNAL SENDER: Do not open attachments or click on links unless you recognize
and trust the sender.
The East Central Vermont Telecommunications District fully supports the VCUDA letter and
examples sent to you this week. We participated in the development of that statement and
look forward to having representatives from our CUD participate in discussions leading to
written policies for the administration of the Vermont Community Broadband Fund monies. 

I also want to call your attention to a document we sent recommending a written policy for
the VCBB to adopt back in the autumn of 2021, and then copied again to Stan Macel on Jan
18, 2022. Prepared by the renowned municipal law and finance attorney, the late Paul
Giuliani, it specifically and neatly addresses the question of when the Board could deem
construction grants beyond clawback. 

This suggestion was not taken up and was not addressed in the materials presented last
week, so we ask that it be considered as part of the effort to get policy on paper.

F. X. Flinn
Chair, Governing Board (Town of Hartford Delegate)
East Central Vermont Telecommunications District (dba ECFiber)
e: chair@ecfiber.net | m:802-369-0069
he/him; Like kd lang and B. B. King, 
              I go by my initials, which are for Francis Xavier

mailto:chair@ecfiber.net
mailto:Patty.Richards@partner.vermont.gov
mailto:Robert.Fish@vermont.gov
mailto:Toni.Clithero@vermont.gov
mailto:vcuda@googlegroups.com
mailto:chair@ecfiber.net

Act 71 Section 8086:

 … 

(c) The Board shall establish policies and standard grant terms and conditions that: 

(1) reflect payment schedules that ensure maximum accountability; 

(2) adopt an industry-accepted engineering standard that promotes network reliability, resiliency, and interoperability; 

(3) establish standards for recouping grant funds and transferring ownership of grant-funded network assets to the State if a grantee materially fails to comply with the terms and conditions of a grant; 

(4) establish a continuity of operations plan applicable to a network owned by a communications union district that, among other things, contemplates the Board assuming operational control of a network if necessary to maintain uninterrupted broadband service; 

(5) prohibit the sale or transfer of grant-funded network assets without the prior written approval of the Board; 

(6) allow an applicant to seek reconsideration of an adverse Board decision; 

(7) ensure project completion within a reasonable period of time and consistent with applicable federal law and guidance; and 

(8) comply with Administrative Bulletin No. 5, the Agency of Administration’s policy for grant issuance and monitoring, and Administrative Bulletin 3.5, the Agency of Administration’s policy for procurement and contracting procedures, as appropriate, and any other requirements of federal law and guidance, if applicable. 

ECFiber Comments regarding 8086(c)3

With respect to recouping grant funds or transferring ownership of grant funded assets, the VCBB needs to recognize that these provisions create a material impediment to the ability of CUDs to issue municipal revenue bonds, which is a primary goal of Act 71 as stated in 8086(g):

(g) It is the intent of the General Assembly that a broadband project financed under this Program demonstrates an economically sustainable business model that ultimately will be eligible for financing in the private or municipal bond market. 

Certainly, in the case of the East Central Vermont Telecommunications District (d/b/a ECFiber), the chance that grants from the Vermont Community Broadband Fund may include a provision of that sort is already leading us to include this disclaimer in our 2021 Series A bond offering: 

Grants:The District intends to apply to the Vermont Community Broadband Board for an award of Vermont Community Broadband Fund preconstruction and construction grants-in-aid.

Upon receipt, the proceeds of such grants shall be expended by the District to acquire capital assets to be used in its telecommunications plant. The enabling statute under which Fund-based grants are made by the Board (No. 71 of the Acts of 2021) provides that the Board shall “establish standards for recouping grant funds and transferring grant-funded network assets to the State if a grantee materially fails to comply with the terms and conditions of a grant.”

In order to protect the operational integrity of its telecommunications plant in the event grant recoupment and asset possession is sought, the District intends to construct and maintain grant-funded network assets in such a manner that neither their removal nor any grant recoupment liability will have a substantial or material impact on the continued operation of the District’s telecommunications plant.

This will create complications in execution and may negatively impact the ability to market the bonds at the same attractive rates our existing bonds, which sell at a premium, enjoy.

After conferring with our counsel, Paul Giuliani, we would like to propose that the VCBB adopt the following with respect to 8086(c)3: 

For purposes of 30 VSA 8068(c)(3), it shall be conclusively presumed that a grantee has fully complied with all grant terms and conditions if:

a. the grantee is not in default of issued and outstanding telecommunications plant project notes or bonds secured by a pledge of net revenues derived from the operation of its telecommunications system; 

or 

b. the grantee provides the Board with five years of audited financial statements demonstrating surplus cash from system operations equal to 1.25 of  the amount that would be needed for debt service on notes or bonds secured by a pledge of net revenue in a principal amount of fifty percent of grants awarded to the grantee, using a 30-year term at an interest rate of 4.00%, with principal payments deferred for the first three years of the issue, to determine debt service amount.

If adopted, this would immediately exempt ECFiber from 8086(c)3. In the future, it would allow CUDs fully funded out of grants who don’t need to access the municipal revenue bond market to show that their operations are sufficient to cover the debt service that would be required if half their grant funding had come from municipal revenue bonds.

To put it simply, if a CUD enjoys access to the municipal bond market, or has met the preconditions necessary to access it, it has achieved ‘going concern’ status and ought to be free of any construction grant restrictions.



Act 71 Section 8086: 

 …  

(c) The Board shall establish policies and standard grant terms and conditions that:  

(1) reflect payment schedules that ensure maximum accountability;  

(2) adopt an industry-accepted engineering standard that promotes network reliability, resiliency, and 
interoperability;  

(3) establish standards for recouping grant funds and transferring ownership of grant-funded network 
assets to the State if a grantee materially fails to comply with the terms and conditions of a grant;  

(4) establish a continuity of operations plan applicable to a network owned by a communications union 
district that, among other things, contemplates the Board assuming operational control of a network if 
necessary to maintain uninterrupted broadband service;  

(5) prohibit the sale or transfer of grant-funded network assets without the prior written approval of the 
Board;  

(6) allow an applicant to seek reconsideration of an adverse Board decision;  

(7) ensure project completion within a reasonable period of time and consistent with applicable federal 
law and guidance; and  

(8) comply with Administrative Bulletin No. 5, the Agency of Administration’s policy for grant issuance 
and monitoring, and Administrative Bulletin 3.5, the Agency of Administration’s policy for procurement 
and contracting procedures, as appropriate, and any other requirements of federal law and guidance, if 
applicable.  

ECFiber Comments regarding 8086(c)3 

With respect to recouping grant funds or transferring ownership of grant funded assets, the VCBB needs 
to recognize that these provisions create a material impediment to the ability of CUDs to issue municipal 
revenue bonds, which is a primary goal of Act 71 as stated in 8086(g): 

(g) It is the intent of the General Assembly that a broadband project financed under this Program 
demonstrates an economically sustainable business model that ultimately will be eligible for financing 
in the private or municipal bond market.  

Certainly, in the case of the East Central Vermont Telecommunications District (d/b/a ECFiber), the 
chance that grants from the Vermont Community Broadband Fund may include a provision of that sort is 
already leading us to include this disclaimer in our 2021 Series A bond offering:  

Grants:The District intends to apply to the Vermont Community Broadband Board for an award of 
Vermont Community Broadband Fund preconstruction and construction grants-in-aid. 



Upon receipt, the proceeds of such grants shall be expended by the District to acquire capital assets to be 
used in its telecommunications plant. The enabling statute under which Fund-based grants are made by 
the Board (No. 71 of the Acts of 2021) provides that the Board shall “establish standards for recouping 
grant funds and transferring grant-funded network assets to the State if a grantee materially fails to 
comply with the terms and conditions of a grant.” 

In order to protect the operational integrity of its telecommunications plant in the event grant 
recoupment and asset possession is sought, the District intends to construct and maintain grant-funded 
network assets in such a manner that neither their removal nor any grant recoupment liability will have a 
substantial or material impact on the continued operation of the District’s telecommunications plant. 

This will create complications in execution and may negatively impact the ability to market the bonds at 
the same attractive rates our existing bonds, which sell at a premium, enjoy. 

After conferring with our counsel, Paul Giuliani, we would like to propose that the VCBB adopt the 
following with respect to 8086(c)3:  

For purposes of 30 VSA 8068(c)(3), it shall be conclusively presumed that a grantee has fully complied 
with all grant terms and conditions if: 

a. the grantee is not in default of issued and outstanding telecommunications plant project notes 
or bonds secured by a pledge of net revenues derived from the operation of its 
telecommunications system;  

or  

b. the grantee provides the Board with five years of audited financial statements demonstrating 
surplus cash from system operations equal to 1.25 of  the amount that would be needed for 
debt service on notes or bonds secured by a pledge of net revenue in a principal amount of fifty 
percent of grants awarded to the grantee, using a 30-year term at an interest rate of 4.00%, 
with principal payments deferred for the first three years of the issue, to determine debt service 
amount. 

If adopted, this would immediately exempt ECFiber from 8086(c)3. In the future, it would allow CUDs 
fully funded out of grants who don’t need to access the municipal revenue bond market to show that 
their operations are sufficient to cover the debt service that would be required if half their grant funding 
had come from municipal revenue bonds. 

To put it simply, if a CUD enjoys access to the municipal bond market, or has met the preconditions 
necessary to access it, it has achieved ‘going concern’ status and ought to be free of any construction 
grant restrictions. 



From: Christa Shute, NEK ED
To: VCBB
Subject: Fwd: NEK Broadband comments on Accountability Policy
Date: Tuesday, July 25, 2023 11:58:27 AM
Attachments: NEK Broadband comments on VCBB Accountability Policy July 25 2023.pdf

EXTERNAL SENDER: Do not open attachments or click on links unless you recognize
and trust the sender.

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Christa Shute, NEK ED <director@nekbroadband.org>
Date: Tue, Jul 25, 2023 at 11:57 AM
Subject: NEK Broadband comments on Accountability Policy
To: Richards, Patty <Patty.Richards@partner.vermont.gov>
Cc: <Toni.Clithero@vermont.gov>, Fish, Robert <Robert.Fish@vermont.gov>, Hallquist,
Christine <Christine.Hallquist@vermont.gov>, Executive Committee
<execs@nekbroadband.org>, Rob Vietzke <Rob@vcuda.org>

Patty, 
Please accept these comments on the VCBB proposed Accountability Policy. 
Christa

Christa Shute
Executive Director
802-793-7077

mailto:director@nekbroadband.org
mailto:VCBB@vermont.gov
mailto:director@nekbroadband.org
mailto:Patty.Richards@partner.vermont.gov
mailto:Toni.Clithero@vermont.gov
mailto:Robert.Fish@vermont.gov
mailto:Christine.Hallquist@vermont.gov
mailto:execs@nekbroadband.org
mailto:Rob@vcuda.org



Patty Richards, Chair
Vermont Community Broadband Board July 25, 2023


Dear Patty,
NEK Broadband supports the comment submission from VCUDA. In addition we offer the
following comments on the presented accountability process.


NEK Broadband strongly endorses the accountability policy that has been laid out and
presented. There are some areas in which the policy has morphed into implementation where
we believe that coordination with the CUDs is almost mandatory in order to not be counter
productive.


The first critical area is liens. We believe that liens are justified and we need to ensure they
are done correctly. It is very true that there can be stacked financing. It is very true that we
don’t want grant funded assets sold. The key is to implement liens in a way that enhances and
does not preclude or hinder financing. From the proposed policy: It is the policy of the VCBB to
subordinate its lien interest to the interest in title for purposes of securing financing that, in the
discretion of the VCBB, is reasonably likely to meet the terms of the grantee’s business plan and
promote the sustainability of grant-funded network. This means that every loan would have to
be evaluated and approved by the VCBB. As a municipality we should have more autonomy
and allow the financial markets to judge the risks. The existence of your subordinated lien in
and of itself will mean that a loan would not be made for the purposes of accessing the asset
through a default. Therefore, it is reasonable to set a series of specific conditions for
subordination that are reasonably easy to meet rather than having the VCBB, which may or may
not have at any given time the appropriate expertise, make the financing decisions of our
municipality. Recommendation: Meet with CUDs contemplating bond financing, private
placement financing, or bank financing and their financial advisors and lending
institutions to understand the best mechanism to put this lien in place.


The second critical area is continuity of service. Again, we agree that continuity of service is
critical and that ensuring continuity means identification of issues early enough in the process.
We support the concept of a continuity plan that puts contingencies in place if certain
parameters are met (or not met). Signing over our operations to the VCBB threatens our
autonomy as a municipality and could hinder our ability to execute contingency plans.
Recommendation: A grant term in which the CUD agrees that if the continuity of service
plan presented is deemed inadequate to protect consumers that the CUD agrees to bring







the plan into compliance within a certain time frame and that failure to do so may result
in allowing the VCBB to assure operation of network assets.


The third critical area is timing of grant funding distribution. We support the distribution of
funds according to the Maple Broadband and NEK Broadband schedule - specifically that 30%
is reimbursable for approved expenses with the remaining amount of this 30% to be issued on
completion of the first 50% of project miles. There are two issues with the proposed “policy”
language: (1) cashflow issue where it takes more upfront funds to get to the first 50% of the
miles and (2) the shift from approved expenses to “verified construction costs”. If a line item is
approved in the grant then it is an approved expense and should be eligible. Preferred
recommendation: leave as is. Secondary recommendation: work with CUDs on a schedule that
will meet cashflow requirements.


In conclusion, we support the accountability policy recommendations as a valid form of
contractual grant control to ensure that public funds serve the public interest. We agree with the
position of VCUDA that some of these measures need detailed discussion so that the
consequences are well understood. NEK Broadband believes that collaboration is best
accomplished through conversation. NEK Broadband also strongly believes that we all,
including every VCBB Board member, need to be laser focused on creating a strong
implementation program for BEAD in a short time. This is a complicated program and it is
important for us all to continue educating ourselves on the nuances rather than simply relying on
others. The programmatic design of BEAD IS POLICY not just staff implementation.


NEK Broadband greatly appreciates the work that you do and the importance of your roles in
our state's history of bringing broadband to all.


Sincerely,


Pa�l Fix�


Christa Shute Paul Fixx
Executive Director Chair







Patty Richards, Chair
Vermont Community Broadband Board July 25, 2023

Dear Patty,
NEK Broadband supports the comment submission from VCUDA. In addition we offer the
following comments on the presented accountability process.

NEK Broadband strongly endorses the accountability policy that has been laid out and
presented. There are some areas in which the policy has morphed into implementation where
we believe that coordination with the CUDs is almost mandatory in order to not be counter
productive.

The first critical area is liens. We believe that liens are justified and we need to ensure they
are done correctly. It is very true that there can be stacked financing. It is very true that we
don’t want grant funded assets sold. The key is to implement liens in a way that enhances and
does not preclude or hinder financing. From the proposed policy: It is the policy of the VCBB to
subordinate its lien interest to the interest in title for purposes of securing financing that, in the
discretion of the VCBB, is reasonably likely to meet the terms of the grantee’s business plan and
promote the sustainability of grant-funded network. This means that every loan would have to
be evaluated and approved by the VCBB. As a municipality we should have more autonomy
and allow the financial markets to judge the risks. The existence of your subordinated lien in
and of itself will mean that a loan would not be made for the purposes of accessing the asset
through a default. Therefore, it is reasonable to set a series of specific conditions for
subordination that are reasonably easy to meet rather than having the VCBB, which may or may
not have at any given time the appropriate expertise, make the financing decisions of our
municipality. Recommendation: Meet with CUDs contemplating bond financing, private
placement financing, or bank financing and their financial advisors and lending
institutions to understand the best mechanism to put this lien in place.

The second critical area is continuity of service. Again, we agree that continuity of service is
critical and that ensuring continuity means identification of issues early enough in the process.
We support the concept of a continuity plan that puts contingencies in place if certain
parameters are met (or not met). Signing over our operations to the VCBB threatens our
autonomy as a municipality and could hinder our ability to execute contingency plans.
Recommendation: A grant term in which the CUD agrees that if the continuity of service
plan presented is deemed inadequate to protect consumers that the CUD agrees to bring



the plan into compliance within a certain time frame and that failure to do so may result
in allowing the VCBB to assure operation of network assets.

The third critical area is timing of grant funding distribution. We support the distribution of
funds according to the Maple Broadband and NEK Broadband schedule - specifically that 30%
is reimbursable for approved expenses with the remaining amount of this 30% to be issued on
completion of the first 50% of project miles. There are two issues with the proposed “policy”
language: (1) cashflow issue where it takes more upfront funds to get to the first 50% of the
miles and (2) the shift from approved expenses to “verified construction costs”. If a line item is
approved in the grant then it is an approved expense and should be eligible. Preferred
recommendation: leave as is. Secondary recommendation: work with CUDs on a schedule that
will meet cashflow requirements.

In conclusion, we support the accountability policy recommendations as a valid form of
contractual grant control to ensure that public funds serve the public interest. We agree with the
position of VCUDA that some of these measures need detailed discussion so that the
consequences are well understood. NEK Broadband believes that collaboration is best
accomplished through conversation. NEK Broadband also strongly believes that we all,
including every VCBB Board member, need to be laser focused on creating a strong
implementation program for BEAD in a short time. This is a complicated program and it is
important for us all to continue educating ourselves on the nuances rather than simply relying on
others. The programmatic design of BEAD IS POLICY not just staff implementation.

NEK Broadband greatly appreciates the work that you do and the importance of your roles in
our state's history of bringing broadband to all.

Sincerely,

Pa�l Fix�

Christa Shute Paul Fixx
Executive Director Chair



 
PO Box 88 

Rutland, VT 05701 
 Info@OCCUD.org      
              Occud.org  

 
 
 
Re. VCBB Proposed Policy on Accountability 
July 24, 2023 
 
Pa>y Richards, Chair 
Vermont Community Broadband Board Members and Staff, 
  
  
O>er Creek CUD appreciates the opportunity for the chance to provide feedback on the VCBB's 
proposed draK policy concerning accountability. We concur with the remarks put forth by 
VCUDA and Lamoille Fiber CUD related to this draK. Moreover, we are deeply concerned about 
the implicaQons of this draK policy, parQcularly the VCBB's decision to temporarily halt grant 
reviews, and its impact on the construcQon grant applicaQon process for O>er Creek CUD. 
The introducQon of the proposed draK Policy and its notably brief response period are 
concerning for several reasons. Firstly, to the best of our knowledge, only three CUDs, including 
O>er Creek, have yet to submit their applicaQons for construcQon grants. This Qming appears 
inequitable for these three enQQes. Furthermore, the unveiling of this proposed policy a mere 
week before O>er Creek's intended submission date has necessitated a shiK in focus for both 
our team and our partners. Instead of finalizing our applicaQon, we are now dedicaQng 
resources to analyze the policy, assess its implicaQons, and formulate a response. While we are 
commi>ed to meeQng the August deadline for our applicaQon, this unexpected change has 
precluded the possibility of an early submission. 
 
The O>er Creek CUD offers soluQons that address the issues presented in the proposed draK 
policy. It's important to note that due to the structure of O>er Creek CUD, several of the 
proposed policies are not applicable to our strategy. Specifically, we neither possess a CUD-
owned network nor are we in the process of borrowing funds. Furthermore, some grant review 
criteria are already in line with exisQng statutes. 
 
Consequently, we kindly request that the VCBB evaluate our applicaQon under the same 
condiQons as previous applicants who received grants prior to the introducQon of the proposed 
policy and the subsequent announcement to halt future grant reviews pending the final policy's 
implementaQon. 
 
 
RespecYully, 
 
Laura Black 
Laura Black 
Chair, O>er Creek CUD 
 



 
PO Box 88 

Rutland, VT 05701 
 Info@OCCUD.org      
              Occud.org  

 
 
Cc: 
C. Hallquist 
T. Clithero, Esq. 
E. Emerson, Esq. 
L. Birmingham, LFCUD 
OCCUD Governing Board 
 
 
 



From: Lisa Birmingham
To: Richards, Patty
Cc: Jeff Tilton; Hallquist, Christine; Clithero, Toni; Rogers, Lucy; Fish, Robert; programcoordinator; Laura Black;

Elijah Emerson
Subject: Lamoille FiberNet Letter and Comments on VCBB Draft Policies
Date: Monday, July 24, 2023 12:58:04 PM
Attachments: LFCUD Letter to VCBB Policy Changes.pdf

VCBB ACCOUNTABILITY POLICIES - FOR BOARD REVIEW - LFCUD comments.pdf

EXTERNAL SENDER: Do not open attachments or click on links unless you recognize
and trust the sender.
On behalf of Lamoille FiberNet Communications Union District, attached please find our cover letter
and comments to the proposed draft policies.  I did not copy the VCBB Board members individually,
just Patty, as instructed.  I assume the submissions will be included in the Board packet for Friday’s
special meeting.

As a courtesy and for efficiency, I am also copying a few others.

Thank you,

Lisa

Lisa Nolen Birmingham
Interim Executive Director
Lamoille FiberNet Communications Union District
director@lamoillefiber.net
802-696-9025

Please note this communication and any response will be maintained as a public record and may be
subject to disclosure under Vermont Public Records Act.

mailto:director@lamoillefiber.net
mailto:Patty.Richards@partner.vermont.gov
mailto:jtilton@lamoillefiber.net
mailto:Christine.Hallquist@vermont.gov
mailto:Toni.Clithero@vermont.gov
mailto:Lucy.Rogers@vermont.gov
mailto:Robert.Fish@vermont.gov
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=user75271a23
mailto:lblack@vermontel.net
mailto:eemerson@primmer.com
mailto:director@lamoillefiber.net



 


Lamoille FiberNet | PO Box 1487, 31 Lower Main St., Morrisville, VT 05661 | 802.851-0087 
www.lamoillefiber.net | director@lamoillefiber.net 


 


Via Email 
 
July 24, 2023 
 
Patty Richards, Chair  
Vermont Community Broadband Board Members and Staff 
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposed VCBB Accountability Policies Draft. 
  
The VCBB Draft Policies represent a huge, thoughtful, and necessary undertaking. That the 
proposals raise multiple concerns is not surprising. The tight turnaround to comment on such 
sweeping changes adds to our concern. We have done our best to respond constructively and 
ask that you consider this our initial comments. We have referred several substantive questions 
to our legal counsel and will supplement our response as the process allows.  Accordingly, 
LFCUD supports VCUDA’s recommendation to develop working groups.  We appreciate the 
effort and look forward to collaborating.  
  
We also want to express our alignment with Otter Creek CUD’s comments and request to 
continue reviewing construction grants.   
 
Finally, for additional context, LFCUD offers the following general comments:  
  
Shared Accountability; Accountability Overtime. The Draft Policies are silent as to CUDs’ role 
in ensuring accountability. Like VCBB, CUDs play a critical role ensuring public accountability 
and contractual accountability. Section 1 of Act 71 (Findings and Intent) refer to the CUD’s role 
in ensuring public accountability1:  So, while VCBB must establish certain standards and policies 
to administer the grant program and advance Act 71 goals, VCBB is not the sole source for 
accountability. In fact, once networks are constructed and the grant performance period has 
run, CUDs should be responsible for the ongoing network operations and performance and 
customer service. Moreover, CUDs are already empowered to ensure business partner 
accountability and are structured to ensure public accountability. Of course, the attorney 
general and other Vermont authorities, not to mention federal agencies, also have jurisdiction 
over certain matters.   
  
Legislative Intent. Several of the Draft Policies seem to go beyond what is authorized by statute 
or necessary address the objectives. Some recommendations are prescriptive and could be 
interpreted as regulating ISPs, or at least the ISPs associated with CUDs. Other 
recommendations, such as the imposition of liens on grant-funded assets on day-one, warrant 
further exploration to minimize unnecessary burdens.   
 



http://www.lamoillefiber.net/

mailto:info@lamoillefiber.net





 


Lamoille FiberNet | PO Box 1487, 31 Lower Main St., Morrisville, VT 05661 | 802.851-0087 
www.lamoillefiber.net | director@lamoillefiber.net 


Public Private Partnerships. Act 71 also encourages public private partnerships and prioritizes 
partnerships that leverage private assets.  Act 71 also recognized and deferred to CUDs’ existing 
authority to come up with grassroots solutions, rather than prescribing a statewide solution or 
single model.   
 
After three years diligently exploring different partnerships and business models, our ten-town 
Board unanimously voted to enter into a public private partnership. We  have spent the last 
seven months negotiating a robust and resilient partnership; we were on the cusp of filing our 
construction grant application.  These draft policies create sufficient regulatory uncertainty, 
that if adopted as drafted, both LFCUD and our partner are questioning the prudence of 
proceeding.  If we change course, we will also lose the time and incur more costs, and delay 
bringing broadband to our unserved and underserved constituents. These seem unnecessary 
and avoidable outcomes.   
 
Like OCCUD, Lamoille believes we have addressed the numerous concerns and requirements.  
We remain hopeful that we will be able to submit our construction grant and share how we 
have addressed the Act 71 goals and priorities and the risks identified by the State Auditor and 
satisfied the RFP construction grant criteria and ensured accountability for the long-term, for 
the benefit of our communities.  
  
Thank you for your consideration.  
  
Respectfully submitted,  
  
  
  
Jeff Tilton   Lisa Birmingham,  
Chair     Interim executive Director  


 
 


c. 
 
C. Hallquist 
T. Clithero, Esq. 
E. Emerson, Esq. 
L. Black, OCCUD 
LFCUD Governing Board 
 



http://www.lamoillefiber.net/

mailto:info@lamoillefiber.net






POLICY EXPRESSLY REQUIRED BY LAW 


 
1. Project Readiness and Grant Accountability – 


Assurance. 
2. Engineering Standards for Reliability, Resilience and 


Interoperability. 
3. Recouping Grant Funds.      


4. Transfer of Grant-Funded Assets. 


5. Continuity of Service. 


6. Authorized Ownership Transfers. 


7. Anticipated Default, Notice 


8. Appeal. 


9. Completion Period. 


10. Sunset and Transferability 


POLICY NECESSARY TO PUBLIC INTEREST AND PURPOSE 


 
1. Priority of Universal Service and 


Geographic Distribution of Funds. 
2. Consumer Standards Certifications. 


3. Low Income Inclusivity. 


4. Affordable Service Planning and Reporting. 


5. Prioritization of On-Grid Locations. 


6. Prioritizing Fiber Plant. 


7. [Additional Recommendations]


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


VCBB Staff Contact: Toni Clithero, Esq. 


7-6-2023 


 
Vermont Community Broadband Board - Working Draft 1 July 12, 2023 


VCBB Accountability Policies 2023 
Ensuring accountability for the public interest obligations of receiving grant funding pursuant to Act 71 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


 
 


Accountability Policies of the VCBB 


Purpose: This set of policy statements of the VCBB intends to address its obligations to protect the public interest as anticipated by the Vermont Legislature in its 


passage of Act 71 (Chapter 91A of Title 30, Vermont Statutes Annotated), from the specific requirements of construction of a reliable broadband network to the 


broader objectives of municipal service. This set of policies addresses three questions: 


1. What standards guarantee “public accountability for serving all Vermonters” applicable to the infrastructure built, in whole or in part, by the Vermont 


Community Broadband Fund? 


2. What is the definition of accountability under Act 71 and who is held accountable? 


3. How will the VCBB, or the State of Vermont, implement these policies to protect the public interest, and how can these accountability policies be 


enforced now and in the future? 


Authority of the Board. The authority of the VCBB to enact this policy derives expressly and implicitly from 30 VSA §§8081, 8084, 8085, 8086, and 8089a. 


Application of these Policies. The VCBB began awarding grants in 2021. These policies are intended to aggregate the obligations of the Community Broadband 


Fund grantees in one place and to clarify the policies of the VCBB. The obligation to hold grantees accountable for the public interest described in Act 71 is 


inherent in all grants issued by the VCBB under Act 71. Any exceptions or limitations to the application of these policies and the obligations for performance that 


they create are noted. 


Accountability. These policies are designed to describe the scope of the public interest addressed by the legislature in Act 71, and clarify who is accountable for 


those results. The responsibility of the VCBB for administering the Community Broadband Fund requires that the VCBB plan for the intended public interest 


results and identify who will be accountable. Generally, those who receive distributions from the Community Broadband Fund will be accountable for the public 


interest the Fund is designed to deliver. The VCBB is accountable for ensuring that the Fund recipients are accountable for the public interest. 


Duration and Transfer. Section 8089a of Title 30 expressly requires that the VCBB plan, by January 15, 2029, for the transfer of its legal obligations, including its 


obligation for the accountability of grant recipients or their successors, by recommending a designated State entity to assume such legal obligations or by 


recommending an extension on the statutory sunset clause applicable to the VCBB. While that recommendation is not made here, the VCBB recognizes 


accountability oversight is one of the legal obligations it must plan for. 


Definitions. Unless defined in the policy statement or referenced standard, all terms in this policy statement have the meanings assigned to them in Act 71. The 


term “VCBB Board” is used throughout to indicate that the arbiter of application of this policy is a majority of the board of directors of the VCBB, appointed as 


provided in Act 71, unless such authority is expressly delegated to VCBB Staff or another designee.







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


 


 


Act 71 Provision 
requiring 
Accountability 


 


Current Practice: 
Grant Terms, RFP Certifications or Application 


Attestations 


 


Proposed Board Policy 


  


Express Accountability Requirements to Protect the Public Interest:  


Construction Grant Conditions- 8086(c)  


(1) Payment schedule 
ensuring accountability 
And 8086 (d) (business 
plan) and (g) 
(sustainability 
requirement) 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Minor change: 
consistency of payment 
schedule for grantees 


Maple Attachment B-Payment Section 4: 


a. Provides for payment of 30% on execution 


b. Provides for performance payments of up to 30% upon 


submission and approval by Grant Manager of a detailed 


construction engineering design where x%=fiber miles included in 


the portion of the design 


c. 30% is reimbursable for approved expenses with remaining 


amount of this 30% to be issued on completion of first 50% of 


project miles 


d. Construction completion payment of 8% based on grant 


agreement re compliance at completion (all testing and 


submission of required reporting data) 


e. Final payments totaling 2% upon submission of 6 and 12 month 


post project reporting and all required data 


SoVT Attachment B-Section 4 
a. Provides for payment of 1.7% on execution 


b. 90% due on completion of project; 


c. Final 10% upon submission post-project reporting after 6 months 


The Construction RFP requires applicants constructing private 
infrastructure to accept a maximum contract price and no payment until 
work is certified complete, whereas applicants building publicly owned 
infrastructure awards use an estimated price and provide for 
performance payments (see details above re Maple vs SoVT) 


 


Project Readiness and Grant Accountability – 
Assurance. The Board prefers to set a consistent grant 
disbursement program using incremental payments 
that are consistent among all grantees. Grant 
disbursements for construction grants require proof 
of project readiness and the financial preparedness of 
the grantee. (Construction and planning preparedness 
is the subject of grants under the Broadband Pre- 
construction Grant Program.) No grant funds shall be 
distributed without demonstration to VCBB staff of 
project readiness and financial preparedness, 
including acceptance of a viable business plan 
pursuant to Subsection 8086(d). Thereafter, grants 
shall be distributed according to the following (Maple) 
schedule: 


- 30% on execution 


- 30% on VCBB approval of the total engineering 


design for the approved construction 


- After completion of 50% of the project fiber 


miles, up to 30% of the grant funding is 


available to reimburse verified construction 


costs 


- 10% upon compliance with testing of the 


approved network, proof of service and 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


 


  revised approved business plan, and 


documentation requirements. 


 


LFCUD: The RFP sets up two grant structures; two 


payment structures are acceptable.  CUDs should be able 


to negotiate stricter standards, or comparable standards 


depending on Phasing, subject to VCBB approval. 


(2) Adopt industry- 
accepted engineering 
standard promoting 
reliability, resiliency and 
interoperability 


 
 
 


Minor change: State a 
policy for the intended 
results of engineering 
standards 


Attachment A-Section 4b. Detailed Design-Both SoVT and Maple 
Requires compliance with Act 71 Outside Plant Design Standards; also 
restated in Section C (1) of Attachment A. 
Attachment A, 3(f) requires inclusion of industry-accepted standards for 
sustainability, redundancy or resiliency. 
These requirements are also listed at 
https://publicservice.vermont.gov/content/outside-plant-design-osp- 
requirements. 


 


NOTE: the above OPD provides guidance, but does not set specific 
standards. 


Engineering Standards for Reliability, Resilience and 
Interoperability. The VCBB requires that all 
Community Broadband Fund grant-funded networks 
meet engineering standards that ensure reliable 
and resilient networks for delivery of broadband 
speeds of at least 100/100 gbps (megabits) per 
location and ensure the network as constructed 
shall meet availability requirements of 99.9% or 
greater. Grantees shall also comply with applicable 
ANSI standards, construction regulations, and 
electrical codes adopted by the State of Vermont, 
and the Outside Plant Design standards (OPD) set by 
the VCBB as published at the time of the grant 
approval and incorporated into the grant. OPD 
standards shall provide engineering guidance and 
numeric technical standards for network 
construction to achieve resiliency, reliability, 
interoperability and open architecture, including but 
not limited to standards for the minimum number 
and type of fiber strands, 


 



https://publicservice.vermont.gov/content/outside-plant-design-osp-requirements

https://publicservice.vermont.gov/content/outside-plant-design-osp-requirements

https://publicservice.vermont.gov/content/outside-plant-design-osp-requirements





Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


   fiber sparing, allowable loss budget, growth planning, 
designated power supply and backup, PON splitter and 
OLT port per location, and the minimum drop budget. 
Grantees shall provide accurate as-built documentation 
and specifications for each network incorporating 
grant-funded assets. 
 
LFCUD: Current OPD and CTC review of proposals is 
adequate to ensure that reliable, resilient networks 
with interoperability are being designed and 
constructed.  
 
For purposes of determining qualifications for a 
construction grant, engineering and network experts 
should develop any new standards. Standards 
borrowed from different regulatory (telecom) schemes, 
such as “availability requirements of 99.9%,” could be 
problematic.  
 
Any new standards should promote the goals, not 
prescribe specific architecture. One size will not fit all; 
solutions vary and evolve. Applicants should have the 
burden to demonstrate that how their chosen 
architecture and network maintenance strategy is 
consistent with industry standards for reliability, 
resiliency and interoperability at day one and over time. 
A testing regime to release final funds, that confirms 
implementation on day-one, is also reasonable. 
Performance of the network overtime should be the 
responsibility of CUDs,  
 
 


new policy related to 


engineering 


 See Open Architecture Policy at 8086(b)(7) 
 


LFCUD – Act 71 does not require (or mention) open 
architecture. Open architecture is unnecessary to 
achieve interoperability. Any open architecture 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


standard should be optional. See comment below re: 
8086(b) (7) (prioritizing public assets).  


 


(3) Establish standards 
for recouping of grant 
funds and transferring 
ownership of grant- 
funded network assets 
if a grantee materially 
fails to comply with the 
terms and conditions of 
a grant 
See also 8086(c)(5) 


 
 


Change: Implement a 
policy for both 
recoupment and 
transfer that include 
more enforceability 
through a lien or 
assignment that can be 
subordinated at the 
discretion of the VCBB 
Board. 


Attachment B-Payment Section 6-Both SoVT and Maple 


If Grantee does not fulfill its obligations or violates the Agreement the 
State shall notify of the breach; 30 day cure period; State may set off and 
hold payments until cured. If no cure in 30 days, State may require 
grantee to immediately reimburse the State any portion of grant funds 
not expended or improperly expended, or retain any portion of grant or 
other funds due grantee equal to the reimbursement amount and may 
terminate with written notice 
 
Attachment D-SoVT-Contractor Breach, Errors and Omissions provision, 
any breach has to be corrected at no cost to the State 


Recouping Grant Funds: The VCBB is obligated by law 
to ensure each grantee is accountable for the 
expenditures authorized in the grant, and to provide a 
means for recoupment in the event of 
nonperformance. If at any time prior to distribution 
of up to 100% of grant funds, VCBB staff determine 
that a grantee fails to meet the terms and conditions 
of a grant, staff shall provide written notice to the 
grantee and to the VCBB Board identifying the subject 
nonperformance. There shall be a cure period of 30 
days from the date of the notice during which time 
grant funds shall not be distributed to the grantee. 
Grantee’s failure to cure nonperformance may 
result in cancellation of the grant or recall of up to 
100% of grant funds at the discretion of the VCBB 
Board and the sale of the  network assets to another 
public network operator. The grantee may appeal staff 
decisions of grant noncompliance or nonperformance 
to the VCBB Board at a regularly scheduled public 
meeting within 60 days of the written notice. 


 


LFCUD Recouping Funds  - circumstances may vary; not all 
circumstances – especially in a construction project – can 
be resolved in 30 days; recommend reasonable time 
periods and criteria – such as 30 days to cure or develop a 
remediation plan.  Adequate process to ensure all are 
treated fairly and expeditiously.  


 
     Transfer of Grant-Funded Assets. The VCBB is 
obligated by law to ensure that the assets constructed 
by each grantee meet the public interest objectives of 
Act 71, including but not limited to universal service 
and continuous operation of the assets constructed 
using the Community Broadband Fund. The grantee is 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


accountable for the public interest results set by the 
policies of the VCBB Board and Act 71. The VCBB is 


 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


  obligated by law to provide a means to reclaim and 
transfer assets constructed using Community 
Broadband Funds if the terms of the grant are not 
met, including but not limited to the operation of the 
network in a manner that meets the public interest 
described in the VCBB’s policies and Act 71. 
Therefore, prior to distribution of grant funds, the 
VCBB shall file a form UCC 1 with the Vermont 
Secretary of State, designating the name of the 
grantee, the miles of fiber and municipal location of 
the network construction, and specifying the State of 
Vermont as the lien holder subject to the terms of the 
grant and these accountability policies. It is the policy 
of the VCBB to subordinate its lien interest to the 
interest in title for purposes of securing financing that, 
in the discretion of the VCBB, is reasonably likely to 
meet the terms of the grantee’s business plan and 
promote the sustainability of grant-funded network. 
The lien shall be released upon twenty years of 
operation of the network by grantee or such third 
party as the VCBB Board shall approve. The VCBB will 
summarize the grant terms and public interest 
accountability policies of the VCBB that attach to the 
operation of the network in the lien, and provide 
grantees with a form of agreement that provides the 
terms and effect of the lien. Should the VCBB exercise 
its rights under the lien, it shall have the right to 
transfer title to the network assets to a third-party 
public entity that is a communications union district or 
other public interest operator of broadband networks 
in lieu of recoupment of the grant funds. The grantee 
may appeal staff decisions of grant noncompliance or 
nonperformance to the VCBB Board at a regularly 
scheduled public meeting within 60 days of the 
written notice. 
 
LFCUD – Asset Transfers.  This section seems to be 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


doing much more than developing standards for 
transferring ownership of grant-funded assets during 
the performance period of the grant. Imposing a lien 
day one – for twenty-years – seems like an outsized 
solution.  We have referred to our legal counsel for 
recommendations. 
 
Standards would answer questions such as  


- What “failures” warrant asset transfer? 
- What should be the objectives of an asset 


transfer? Maintaining continuity? Maintaining 


continuity? Local control?  
- What due process is required?  


- What rights do CUDs or their communities which 
voted to create them have in the process? 


- Should CUDs be able to designate another CUD 


or local authority such as a county planning 
commission. Should such designation be  subject 


to VCBB approval or community approval? 
- How long after the grant performance period 


may the VCBB exercise authority to transfer 


assets ?  


 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


(4) Establish a continuity 
of operations plan 
applicable to a network 
owned by a CUD that, 
among other things, 
contemplates the Board 
assuming operational 
control of a network if 
necessary to maintain 
uninterrupted 
broadband service 
 
 


 


Change: Adoption of a 
Continuity Policy 
Requirement and notice 
of default. 
 
 
 


TBD Continuity of Service. Reliability and interoperability 
are stated objectives of Act 71. The VCBB is obligated 
by law to provide an operations plan that assures 
operations of each network controlled by a CUD and 
funded by the Community Broadband Fund. Each 
grantee that is a CUD shall (a) annually prepare and 
submit to the VCBB a continuity plan that reasonably 
sets forth the operating requirements of the network, 
and (b) sign an agreement with the VCBB to allow the 
VCBB to assure operation of network assets in the 
event of a default on the obligations of the CUD or its 
operator of the network that threaten the continuity 
of service provided to customers, including but not 
limited to the right to designate a third party operator, 
at VCBB’s discretion, to ensure operation of the 
network for a reasonable fee until continuity of 
service is assured and the reliability/ availability 
standards adopted by the VCBB are met. It is the 
policy and obligation of the VCBB to take such 
reasonable steps as it determines necessary, at the 
grantee’s expense, upon ten days written notice from 
the date the VCBB Board determines that operation of 
the assets funded by the Community Broadband Fund 
do not deliver broadband service to the service area 
designated in the approved grant application that 
meet the VCBB availability/reliability standard of 
99.9% or the VCBB receives notice of default pursuant 
to Subsection 8086(h). The VCBB Board shall receive 
any notices issued under Section 8086(h) of Title 30. 
The VCBB may consider consumer complaints of 
service outages received by the Department of Public 
Service as well as other third-party testing to 
determine continuity of service. Grantees shall 
prioritize service delivery during periods of default or 
bankruptcy, which obligation to operate shall survive 
the duration of the grant payout for a period of 
twenty years from the date of the grant award. 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


LFCUD:  This section is limited applicability to “a network 


owned by CUDs.” Similarly, 8086(h) applies only to CUDs 


that have borrowed funds.  


 


That said, the required continuity plan should be 


developed in concert with CUDs (impacted 


municipalities) and should consider under what 


circumstances VCBB control is necessary. The proposal 


suggests the VCBB which is not a quasi-judicial body or a 


regulator, may take over a municipally-owned network 


based on its assessment of consumer complaint or 


service quality, 15 years from now. This seems to stretch 


the intent of the legislation. We have referred this to our 


legal counsel.   







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


 


(5) Prohibit the sale or 
transfer of grant-funded 
network assets without 
the prior written 
approval of the Board; 
See also 8086(c)(9) 


 
Change: Policy for 
Transfer required 
(Current certification is 
not likely to be binding 
or actionable, and does 
not set standard for 
approval of transfer) 


The Construction RFP requires applicants to certify this requirement. See 
Eligibility Screening, Part 2, Section 6. 


Authorized Ownership Transfers. In order to ensure 
that ownership of grant-funded network assets are 
not sold, assigned or licensed without the written 
authorization of the VCBB Board, ownership of all 
assets constructed with grants of the Community 
Broadband Fund will be held in the name of the 
grantee and the assets shall be subject to a lien held 
by the VCBB or the State of Vermont (see VCBB policy 
30 VSA 8086(c)(3)).The VCBB Board, in considering a 
request to transfer any interest in title to the assets , 
shall act on the request within 30 days by review of 
the transferee’s ability and agreement to meet the 
public interest obligations and surviving grant 
contractual obligations that apply to assets funded by 
the Community Broadband Fund. Such transfer shall 
be subject to a new lien of the VCBB or the State of 
Vermont securing its interest pursuant to its policy 
granted by the transferee. It is the policy of the VCBB 
to subordinate its lien interest to the transfer of an 
interest in title to the funded assets for purposes of 
securing financing that, in the discretion of the VCBB, 
is reasonably likely to meet the terms of the grantee’s 
or transferee’s business plan and promote the 
sustainability of grant-funded network. This obligation 
to receive approval of transfer of an interest in title (of 
any kind) and the lien shall be released upon twenty 
years of operation of the network by grantee or such 
third party as the VCBB Board shall approve. 


 


LFCUD:   We assumed the prohibition was aligned with 


F.A.R. standards for prohibiting sale of federal assets 


prior to completion of performance.  Other federal 


grant programs may provide guidance or less onerous 


options. Also,  20 year lien seems unnecessary to 


achieve the objective.  We have referred this to our 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


legal counsel.   


(6) Allow an applicant to 
seek reconsideration of 
an adverse Board 
decision 


 
Change: Adoption of 
Appeal Policy Required 


The Construction RFP provides for an appeal of an adverse Board decision 
within 30 days 


Appeal. Unless otherwise provided herein, it is the 
policy of the VCBB to hear an appeal by a grant 
applicant of any adverse decision of the VCBB 
(including but not limited to the Board) at the next 
regularly scheduled meeting of the VCBB Board that is 
at least 30 days, but not more than 60 days, from the 
date of such adverse decision. 


 
LFCUD:  Reconsideration, not an appeal, is appropriate 
process; VCBB is not a quasi judicial body.   


 


(7) Ensure project 
completion within a 
reasonable period of 
time and consistent 
with applicable federal 
law and guidance 
Minor change – 
extension process 


Grant duration terms are reasonable and customary; RFP requires 
construction to be completed within 24 months 


Completion Period. It is the policy of the VCBB that 
grants made under the Community Broadband Fund 
will be completed, including all requirements made for 
final payment and compliance with all federal and 
state grant requirements, within 24 months of the 
date of the grant      unless the term of the grant is 
extended by decision of the VCBB Board for cause. 
 


 


(8) Comply with 
Administrative Bulletins 
No. 5 (Grant 
Agreements) and 3.5 
(Contracts) 
No policy required 


Attachment B Section 9 for both SoVT and Maple imposes Administrative 
Bulletin 5 provisions with respect to Subgranting; Attachment C , Standard 
State Provisions for Contracts and Grants is included in all VCCB Grant 
Agreements. 


No VCBB policy is required. These State contract 
provisions are incorporated into VCBB grants as 
required by law. In the event that the State Provisions 
conflict with federal grant requirements, the VCBB 
staff will seek guidance from the Attorney General and 
will advise the grantee and the VCBB Board in writing 
of any deviations from state protocols. 


 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


8086(h)(1) 


Requires CUDs that 
borrow funds for the 
purposes of financing a 
broadband project to 
immediately provide 
written notice to the VCBB 
Board in the event the 
CUD becomes aware that 
it is at risk of financial 
insolvency or of defaulting 
on the payment of 
principal and interest 


TO BE ADDED TO RFP/GRANT AGREEMENTS Potential Default, Notice and Recommendations. It is the 
policy of the VCBB to promptly provide written notice to 
the Governor, the Treasurer and the Joint Fiscal 
Committee upon receipt of such notice from a CUD, and 
to prepare recommendations and advice to ensure 
continued operability and potential transfer of title in 
the event that the potential default occurs and is not 
cured. The VCBB’s policy is that in the event that such 
default results in the transfer of title to the funded 
network assets, the VCBB will consider the transfer of 
title subject to its policies as if the CUD or grantee had 
requested the transfer of title. 
 
 


Sunset Provisions (and Policy Implementation – 8089(a)  


 
TBD: Requirement: plan for transferring its assets, liabilities, and legal and contractual obligations to 
another appropriate State entity. The Board may include in its report a recommendation regarding 
the continued existence of the Board beyond its statutory sunset date. 


 
This provision impacts who holds the right/obligation 
to oversee accountability and exercise contractual 
rights. 
 
LFCUD: CUDs have independent responsibilities that 
will survive. 
 


 


Implied Accountability of the VCBB for the Public Interest  


Grant Evaluation Priorities 8086(b) 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


“The Board shall give 
priority…” 


 


Change: Policy 
statement for how to 
deal with Subsection (b) 
“priorities” is needed – 
as proposed. 


Each of these is included in the Construction RFP, Project Prioritization 
Number (3) is also included in Attachment A, Section 4(f)-Retail 
Broadband Service requirement for no data caps, or throttled data for at 
least 5 years from date of award for SoVT and Section (B)(4)(g) for Maple 


 


In addition, as part of the Master Services Agreement between SoVT and 
Consolidated, Schedule C includes additional consumer protection 
measures and also incorporates the FCC’s affordability program. 


 
These provisions of Subsection 8086(b) require information to be 
collected in the grant process so that it can be considered. However, in 
order to “give priority” the VCBB would be required to consider Grant 
applications against each other. That has not been the reality of the grant 
process or the development of the CUDs. 


Priority of Universal Service and Geographic 
Distribution of Funds. The policy of the VCBB is to 
consider the priorities stated in Subsection 8086(b) in 
making its grant decisions, and to examine them 
across the grant program as a whole, not on a 
comparative basis. All construction grants require a 
Universal Service Plan. [8086(a)] In order to address 
the over-arching objective of Universal Service as well 
as to ensure geographic diversity of Community 
Broadband Fund allocations the policy of the VCBB is 
to reserve an allocation for each geographic area 
represented by CUDs existing as of June 30, 2021, and 
to review grant applications in the context of those 
allocations in the order they are presented and 
designated by the VCBB as project ready and 
consistent with VCBB policy. In its annual report to the 
legislature the VCBB shall report on the application of 
these priorities through analysis of the grant funds 
awarded. 


 


(1)Leverage existing 
private resources and 
assets, with a high 
priority given to 
partnerships between a 
communications union 
district and a 
distribution utility; 
No specific policy 


required 


  


No new policy required. No applications have been 
presented that address this priority. All grant projects 
require collaboration with distribution utilities and are 
subject to Public Utility Commission pole attachment 
rules. 
 
LFCUD: We assume private resources include existing 
infrastructure, operational capacity and expertise which 
is put to use in support of a construction grant, whether 
a distribution utility, existing provider or other third 
party.  


 


(2) Demonstrate project 
readiness 


 Project Readiness. Incorporated by reference into 
Board grant accountability policy at Subsection 
8086(c)(1). Note that board policy incorporates a 


 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


Policy implemented  viable business plan as part of the demonstration of 


project readiness. 


 


(3) Provide broadband 
service that complies 
with the net neutrality 
and consumer 
protection standards of 
3 V.S.A. 348 
Change: This is an 
operations requirement 
that survives the grant 
payout. 


[The status of the certification process by the Secretary of Administration 
proposed by 3 VSA 348 (2017) is unknown.] 


Consumer Standards Certifications. The policy of the 
VCBB, to meet the public interest in consumer 
protection and service standards, is to require 
certification of each grantee annually that it meets the 
service conditions described in Subsection 348(b). The 
grantee receiving Community Broadband Funds, and 
any owner of assets paid for in part by such funds, 
shall certify to the Secretary of Administration, with 
copy to the VCBB or its designee, the terms and 
conditions of 3 VSA 348(b) for a period of 20 years 
from the date of the grant award. 
[NOTE: this does not address maintenance/ customer 
response time, etc.] 
 
 
 
LFCUD:  Priorities are aspirational; this specific priority 
(section 348) is an optional certification program that 
an ISP adheres to certain standards.  Should an 
applicant commit to complying that should be a plus. If 
an applicant does not commit, then the VCBB can 
deprioritize the grant. The proposal converts it into a 
compliance obligation akin to a regulation. It is unclear 
whether VCBB has authority to require compliance as a 
condition of a grant   
 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


(4)Support low-income 
or disadvantaged 
communities; 
Change: This is both a 
design and operations 
requirement that 
survives the grant 
payout. 


No activity supports this objective Low Income Inclusivity. The policy of the VCBB is to 
implement Universal Service as required by the Act, 
including construction of broadband networks and 
provisioning of broadband service to all on-grid 
locations regardless of income or property value. No 
construction utilizing Community Broadband Funds 
shall avoid locations based on the actual or projected 
income of potential customers at such locations or to 
choose a design to overbuild existing service when an 
efficient design serving locations may be less 
profitable. 


 


The submission of proof of avoiding locations that 
are reasonably determined to be low income to the 
VCBB (or on its own investigation) may be grounds for 
violation of a grant agreement or disregard for the 
public interest obligations that survive the duration of 
the Community Broadband Grant for a period of   
years from the date of the grant award. 


 


 


(5) Promote geographic 
diversity of fund 
allocations. 


 
Change: See above 
(Policy statement for 
how to deal with 
Subsection (b)– as 
proposed.) 


This priority is addressed by the regional allocation of grant funds by CUD. SEE policy proposed at 8086(b): …the policy of the 
VCBB is to reserve an allocation for each geographic 
area represented by the existing CUDs and to 
recognize and review grant applications in the context 
of those allocations as they are presented and 
designated by the VCBB as project ready and 
consistent with VCBB policy. 
 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


(6) Provide consumers 
with affordable service 
options 


 
Change: This is a policy 
that implements an 
operations priority and 
survives the grant 
payout. 


This priority has not been addressed except by generalized certification in 
the application process. 


Affordable Service Planning and Reporting. It is the 
policy of the VCBB to require broadband service 
providers utilizing assets funded by the Community 
Broadband Fund to create an outreach and equity plan 
for the inclusion of low income households prior to 
the completion of funded construction, and to 
participate in and promote to all consumers any 
applicable subsidy programs available to reduce 
service costs to low income households served by the 
grantee. The grantee shall annually produce for the 
review of the VCBB an audited balance sheet and shall 
include (a) the rate tiers offered to consumers, (b) the 
total number of customers in each rate tier, (c) the 
number of customers for that reporting year receiving 
subsidies, and (d) the total amount of subsidies 
received for that reporting year.      Within twelve 
months of generating revenue from broadband service 
utilizing assets funded by the Community Broadband 
Fund that exceed operating expenses      by five 
percent, the participating service provider shall also 
include in its annual report a proposal for offering 
reduced rates to qualified customers. This obligation 
of the grant agreement shall survive the delivery of 
grant funds for a period of   years from the date of 
the grant award. 


 


LFCUD:  For purposes of a construction grant, 
Applicants that demonstrate a commitment to 
address affordability in a concrete fashion should be 
given priority.  
 
To provide guidance for applicants, VCBB can 
identify examples of activities or commitments that 
would advance affordability. Applicants could 
research and reveal current prices and fees in their 
footprint, commit to participating in ACP or other 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


similar programs; commit to developing policies or 
programs to serve need-based residents and 
organizations; engage in community outreach and 
partner with local stakeholders to promote ACP 
enrollment, digital literacy, and digital equity.   
 
Prescribing activities and affordability outcomes ] – 
such as directing creation of programs or reports 
seem to be grant conditions – not priorities to 
assess applications. Such conditions  may add risk 
and strain rural business models.   
 
The VCBB can develop independent policy and 
program addressing digital equity and affordability, 
and should do so through BEAD and subsequent 
digital equity grants.  
 


(7) Include public 
broadband assets that 
can be shared by 


 


This priority is inherent in the growth and link budget standards stated in 
the OPD 


No separate policy is required given the 
construction/engineering criteria. Consider, however, 


 


multiple service 
providers and that can 
support a variety of 
public purposes 


 whether an operations policy that implements 
interoperability and shared infrastructure is advised? 
 


 
LFCUD:  Interoperability and shared infrastructure are 
two different concepts. VCBB should seek input from  
experts if it moves forward with a separate policy.  
 


   


Implied Accountability Requirements to Protect the Public Interest 


Legislative Findings and Intent 


 


Section 8081   







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


(1)… the Vermont 
Community Broadband 
Fund to support policies 
and programs designed 
to accelerate 
community efforts that 
advance the State’s goal 
of achieving universal 
access to reliable, high- 
quality, affordable, fixed 
broadband 


The Construction RFP includes numerous accountability measures. These 
were incorporated into both the Maple and SoVT Grant Agreements at 
Attachment F; SoVT-Attachment G-1, respectively. 
Named Act 71 Attestations requirement from Construction RFP, Section 
(I) 


In order to tackle the enormity of the objectives of 
Act 71, and to ensure acceleration of community 
broadband efforts, the VCBB has adopted the 
following policies for purposes of Construction Grant 
awards: 
(a) Prioritization of On-Grid Locations. In support of 
accelerating community efforts that advance the 
State’s goal of achieving universal access through 
support of grantees offering a universal service plan 
pursuant to Subsection 8086(a) and prioritizing the 
use of existing private resource pursuant to 8086(b) 
the policy of the VCBB is to prioritize grant funding for 
broadband service to locations that are served by the 
electric grid. 
 


 


  (b) Prioritizing Fiber Plant. While the definition of 
fixed broadband under the Act, as amended, includes 
retail service by wire or radio that delivers service at 
speeds of at least 100/100           gbps, it is the policy 
of the VCBB to prioritize the funding fiber networks 
that use existing infrastructure, including the use of 
utility poles and power in the public right of way, and 
provide the highest standard of reliability, resilience 
and interoperability to accelerate the delivery of 
broadband service. Radio fixed wireless is an 
acceptable means of delivering broadband service 
where it meets the VCBB’s standards for 
accountability for the public interest, including but not 
limited to reliability, resiliency, and interoperability. 


 


  VCBB Board will not accept self-certification by the 
applicant or grantee to establish accountability for the 
public interest obligations of construction and 
operation of assets paid for in whole or in part 







Table of Proposed Accountability Policies - July 12, 2023 
 


 


Community Broadband Fund. 


(2) to establish the  The Agency of Administration of the State of Vermont, 


Vermont Community in its opinion regarding the Creation of Broadband 
Broadband Board to Programs Using Federal Funds, dated March 13, 2023, 


coordinate, facilitate, has determined that new programs funded through 


support, and accelerate the federally funded BEAD grants are subject to the 


the development and policies and procedures of the VCBB Board. The VCBB 


implementation of Board will apply its existing policies as possible and 


universal community develop new policies as required. Subgrant programs 
broadband solutions. under BEAD or DEI federally funded programs will be 


 subject to policy review by the VCBB Board. 
 


 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      







 

Lamoille FiberNet | PO Box 1487, 31 Lower Main St., Morrisville, VT 05661 | 802.851-0087 
www.lamoillefiber.net | director@lamoillefiber.net 

 

Via Email 
 
July 24, 2023 
 
Patty Richards, Chair  
Vermont Community Broadband Board Members and Staff 
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposed VCBB Accountability Policies Draft. 
  
The VCBB Draft Policies represent a huge, thoughtful, and necessary undertaking. That the 
proposals raise multiple concerns is not surprising. The tight turnaround to comment on such 
sweeping changes adds to our concern. We have done our best to respond constructively and 
ask that you consider this our initial comments. We have referred several substantive questions 
to our legal counsel and will supplement our response as the process allows.  Accordingly, 
LFCUD supports VCUDA’s recommendation to develop working groups.  We appreciate the 
effort and look forward to collaborating.  
  
We also want to express our alignment with Otter Creek CUD’s comments and request to 
continue reviewing construction grants.   
 
Finally, for additional context, LFCUD offers the following general comments:  
  
Shared Accountability; Accountability Overtime. The Draft Policies are silent as to CUDs’ role 
in ensuring accountability. Like VCBB, CUDs play a critical role ensuring public accountability 
and contractual accountability. Section 1 of Act 71 (Findings and Intent) refer to the CUD’s role 
in ensuring public accountability1:  So, while VCBB must establish certain standards and policies 
to administer the grant program and advance Act 71 goals, VCBB is not the sole source for 
accountability. In fact, once networks are constructed and the grant performance period has 
run, CUDs should be responsible for the ongoing network operations and performance and 
customer service. Moreover, CUDs are already empowered to ensure business partner 
accountability and are structured to ensure public accountability. Of course, the attorney 
general and other Vermont authorities, not to mention federal agencies, also have jurisdiction 
over certain matters.   
  
Legislative Intent. Several of the Draft Policies seem to go beyond what is authorized by statute 
or necessary address the objectives. Some recommendations are prescriptive and could be 
interpreted as regulating ISPs, or at least the ISPs associated with CUDs. Other 
recommendations, such as the imposition of liens on grant-funded assets on day-one, warrant 
further exploration to minimize unnecessary burdens.   
 

http://www.lamoillefiber.net/
mailto:info@lamoillefiber.net


 

Lamoille FiberNet | PO Box 1487, 31 Lower Main St., Morrisville, VT 05661 | 802.851-0087 
www.lamoillefiber.net | director@lamoillefiber.net 

Public Private Partnerships. Act 71 also encourages public private partnerships and prioritizes 
partnerships that leverage private assets.  Act 71 also recognized and deferred to CUDs’ existing 
authority to come up with grassroots solutions, rather than prescribing a statewide solution or 
single model.   
 
After three years diligently exploring different partnerships and business models, our ten-town 
Board unanimously voted to enter into a public private partnership. We  have spent the last 
seven months negotiating a robust and resilient partnership; we were on the cusp of filing our 
construction grant application.  These draft policies create sufficient regulatory uncertainty, 
that if adopted as drafted, both LFCUD and our partner are questioning the prudence of 
proceeding.  If we change course, we will also lose the time and incur more costs, and delay 
bringing broadband to our unserved and underserved constituents. These seem unnecessary 
and avoidable outcomes.   
 
Like OCCUD, Lamoille believes we have addressed the numerous concerns and requirements.  
We remain hopeful that we will be able to submit our construction grant and share how we 
have addressed the Act 71 goals and priorities and the risks identified by the State Auditor and 
satisfied the RFP construction grant criteria and ensured accountability for the long-term, for 
the benefit of our communities.  
  
Thank you for your consideration.  
  
Respectfully submitted,  
  
  
  
Jeff Tilton   Lisa Birmingham,  
Chair     Interim executive Director  

 
 

c. 
 
C. Hallquist 
T. Clithero, Esq. 
E. Emerson, Esq. 
L. Black, OCCUD 
LFCUD Governing Board 
 

http://www.lamoillefiber.net/
mailto:info@lamoillefiber.net


P
O

LIC
Y

 EX
P

R
ESSLY

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 B

Y
 LA

W
 

 
1

. 
P

ro
je

c
t R

e
a
d

in
e

s
s
 a

n
d
 G

ra
n

t 
A

c
c
o

u
n
ta

b
ility

 –
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

. 
2

. 
E

n
g

in
e

e
rin

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 fo

r R
e

lia
b

ility
, R

e
s
ilie

n
c
e

 a
n
d

 
In

te
ro

p
e

ra
b

ility
. 

3
. 

R
e
c
o

u
p

in
g

 G
ra

n
t F

u
n

d
s
.      

4
. 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r o
f G

ra
n
t-F

u
n

d
e

d
 A

s
s
e

ts
. 

5
. 

C
o
n

tin
u

ity
 o

f S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

6
. 

A
u

th
o

riz
e

d
 O

w
n
e

rs
h
ip

 T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
. 

7
. 

A
n

tic
ip

a
te

d
 D

e
fa

u
lt, N

o
tic

e
 

8
. 

A
p

p
e
a

l. 

9
. 

C
o
m

p
le

tio
n

 P
e

rio
d

. 

1
0

. S
u

n
s
e
t a

n
d

 T
ra

n
s
fe

ra
b
ility

 

P
O

LIC
Y

 N
EC

ESSA
R

Y
 TO

 P
U

B
LIC

 IN
TER

EST A
N

D
 P

U
R

P
O

SE
 

 
1

. 
P

rio
rity

 o
f U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 

G
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 D
is

trib
u

tio
n

 o
f F

u
n

d
s
. 

2
. 

C
o
n

s
u
m

e
r S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 C

e
rtific

a
tio

n
s
. 

3
. 

L
o

w
 In

c
o

m
e

 In
c
lu

s
iv

ity
. 

4
. 

A
ffo

rd
a

b
le

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 R
e

p
o

rtin
g

. 

5
. 

P
rio

ritiz
a

tio
n

 o
f O

n
-G

rid
 L

o
c
a

tio
n

s
. 

6
. 

P
rio

ritiz
in

g
 F

ib
e

r P
la

n
t. 

7
. 

[A
d

d
itio

n
a

l R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
tio

n
s
]

         

V
C

B
B

 Staff C
o

n
tact: To

n
i C

lith
ero

, Esq
. 

7
-6

-2
0

2
3

 

 V
erm

o
n

t C
o

m
m

u
n

ity B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 B
o

ard
 - W

o
rkin

g D
raft 1 Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 

V
C

B
B

 A
cco

u
n

tab
ility P

o
licies 2

0
2

3
 

En
su

rin
g acco

u
n

tab
ility fo

r th
e p

u
b

lic in
terest o

b
ligatio

n
s o

f receivin
g gran

t fu
n

d
in

g p
u

rsu
an

t to
 A

ct 7
1

 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
    

A
cco

u
n

tab
ility P

o
licies o

f th
e

 V
C

B
B

 

P
u

rp
o

se
: Th

is set o
f p

o
licy statem

en
ts o

f th
e V

C
B

B
 in

ten
d

s to
 ad

d
ress its o

b
ligatio

n
s to

 p
ro

tect th
e p

u
b

lic in
te

rest as an
ticip

ated
 b

y th
e V

erm
o

n
t Legislatu

re in
 its 

p
assage o

f A
ct 7

1
 (C

h
ap

ter 9
1

A
 o

f Title 30
, V

erm
o

n
t Statu

tes A
n

n
o

tated
), fro

m
 th

e sp
ecific re

q
u

irem
en

ts o
f co

n
stru

ctio
n

 o
f a reliab

le b
ro

ad
b

an
d

 n
etw

o
rk to

 th
e 

b
ro

ad
er o

b
jectives o

f m
u

n
icip

al service. Th
is set o

f p
o

licies ad
d

resses th
ree q

u
estio

n
s: 

1
. 

W
h

at stan
d

ard
s gu

aran
te

e “p
u

b
lic acco

u
n

tab
ility fo

r servin
g all V

erm
o

n
ters” ap

p
licab

le to
 th

e in
frastru

ctu
re b

u
ilt, in

 w
h

o
le o

r in
 p

art, b
y th

e V
erm

o
n

t 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ity B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 Fu
n

d
? 

2
. 

W
h

at is th
e d

efin
itio

n
 o

f acco
u

n
tab

ility u
n

d
er A

ct 7
1

 an
d

 w
h

o
 is h

eld
 acco

u
n

tab
le? 

3
. 

H
o

w
 w

ill th
e V

C
B

B
, o

r th
e State o

f V
erm

o
n

t, im
p

lem
en

t th
ese p

o
licies to

 p
ro

tect th
e p

u
b

lic in
te

rest, an
d

 h
o

w
 can

 th
ese acco

u
n

tab
ility p

o
licies b

e 

en
fo

rced
 n

o
w

 an
d

 in
 th

e fu
tu

re? 

A
u

th
o

rity o
f th

e B
o

ard
. Th

e au
th

o
rity o

f th
e V

C
B

B
 to

 en
act th

is p
o

licy d
erives e

xp
ressly an

d
 im

p
licitly fro

m
 3

0
 V

SA
 §§8

08
1

, 8
0

84
, 8

08
5, 8

086
, an

d
 8

08
9

a. 

A
p

p
licatio

n
 o

f th
ese P

o
licie

s. Th
e V

C
B

B
 b

egan
 aw

ard
in

g gran
ts in

 2
0

2
1

. Th
ese p

o
licies are in

ten
d

ed
 to

 aggregate th
e o

b
ligatio

n
s o

f th
e C

o
m

m
u

n
ity B

ro
ad

b
an

d
 

Fu
n

d
 gran

te
es in

 o
n

e p
lace an

d
 to

 clarify th
e p

o
licies o

f th
e V

C
B

B
. Th

e o
b

ligatio
n

 to
 h

o
ld

 gran
te

es acco
u

n
tab

le fo
r th

e p
u

b
lic in

terest d
escrib

ed
 in

 A
ct 7

1
 is 

in
h

eren
t in

 all gran
ts issu

ed
 b

y th
e V

C
B

B
 u

n
d

er A
ct 7

1
. A

n
y excep

tio
n

s o
r lim

itatio
n

s to
 th

e ap
p

licatio
n

 o
f th

ese
 p

o
licie

s an
d

 th
e o

b
ligatio

n
s fo

r p
erfo

rm
an

ce th
at 

th
ey create are n

o
te

d
. 

A
cco

u
n

tab
ility. Th

ese p
o

licies are d
esign

ed
 to

 d
escrib

e th
e sco

p
e o

f th
e p

u
b

lic in
te

rest ad
d

ressed
 b

y th
e legislatu

re in
 A

ct 71
, an

d
 clarify w

h
o

 is acco
u

n
tab

le fo
r 

th
o

se resu
lts. Th

e resp
o

n
sib

ility o
f th

e V
C

B
B

 fo
r ad

m
in

isterin
g th

e C
o

m
m

u
n

ity B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 Fu
n

d
 re

q
u

ires th
at th

e V
C

B
B

 p
lan

 fo
r th

e in
ten

d
ed

 p
u

b
lic in

te
rest 

resu
lts an

d
 id

en
tify w

h
o

 w
ill b

e acco
u

n
tab

le. G
en

erally, th
o

se w
h

o
 re

ceive d
istrib

u
tio

n
s fro

m
 th

e C
o

m
m

u
n

ity B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 Fu
n

d
 w

ill b
e acco

u
n

tab
le fo

r th
e p

u
b

lic 

in
te

rest th
e Fu

n
d

 is d
esign

ed
 to

 d
eliver. Th

e V
C

B
B

 is acco
u

n
tab

le fo
r e

n
su

rin
g th

at th
e Fu

n
d

 recip
ien

ts are acco
u

n
tab

le fo
r th

e p
u

b
lic in

te
rest. 

D
u

ratio
n

 an
d

 T
ran

sfer. Sectio
n

 8
0

8
9

a o
f Title 3

0
 exp

ressly req
u

ires th
at th

e V
C

B
B

 p
lan

, b
y Jan

u
ary 1

5
, 2

0
2

9, fo
r th

e tran
sfer o

f its legal o
b

ligatio
n

s, in
clu

d
in

g its 

o
b

ligatio
n

 fo
r th

e acco
u

n
tab

ility o
f gran

t recip
ien

ts o
r th

eir su
ccesso

rs, b
y re

co
m

m
en

d
in

g a d
esign

ate
d

 State en
tity to

 assu
m

e su
ch

 legal o
b

ligatio
n

s o
r b

y 

reco
m

m
en

d
in

g an
 exten

sio
n

 o
n

 th
e statu

to
ry su

n
set clau

se ap
p

licab
le to

 th
e V

C
B

B
. W

h
ile th

at reco
m

m
en

d
atio

n
 is n

o
t m

ad
e h

ere, th
e V

C
B

B
 reco

gn
izes 

acco
u

n
tab

ility o
versigh

t is o
n

e o
f th

e legal o
b

ligatio
n

s it m
u

st p
lan

 fo
r. 

D
e

fin
itio

n
s. U

n
less d

efin
ed

 in
 th

e p
o

licy statem
en

t o
r refere

n
ced

 stan
d

ard
, all term

s in
 th

is p
o

licy statem
en

t h
ave th

e m
ean

in
gs assign

ed
 to

 th
em

 in
 A

ct 7
1

. Th
e 

te
rm

 “V
C

B
B

 B
o

ard
” is u

sed
 th

ro
u

gh
o

u
t to

 in
d

icate th
at th

e arb
iter o

f ap
p

licatio
n

 o
f th

is p
o

licy is a m
ajo

rity o
f th

e b
o

ard
 o

f d
irecto

rs o
f th

e V
C

B
B

, ap
p

o
in

te
d

 as 

p
ro

vid
ed

 in
 A

ct 7
1

, u
n

less su
ch

 au
th

o
rity is exp

ressly d
elegated

 to
 V

C
B

B
 Staff o

r an
o

th
er d

esign
ee

.



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
   

 A
ct 7

1
 P

ro
visio

n
 

re
q

u
irin

g 
A

cco
u

n
tab

ility 

 

C
u

rre
n

t P
ractice

: 
G

ran
t Te

rm
s, R

FP
 C

e
rtificatio

n
s o

r A
p

p
licatio

n
 

A
tte

statio
n

s 

 

P
ro

p
o

sed
 B

o
ard

 P
o

licy 

 
 

Exp
ress A

cco
u

n
tab

ility R
eq

u
irem

e
n

ts to
 P

ro
tect th

e
 P

u
b

lic In
tere

st: 
 

C
o

n
stru

ctio
n

 G
ran

t C
o

n
d

itio
n

s- 8
08

6(c) 
 

(1
) P

aym
en

t sch
ed

u
le 

en
su

rin
g acco

u
n

tab
ility 

A
n

d
 8

0
8

6
 (d

) (b
u

sin
ess 

p
lan

) an
d

 (g) 
(su

stain
ab

ility 
req

u
irem

en
t) 

       M
in

o
r ch

an
ge: 

co
n

sisten
cy o

f p
aym

en
t 

sch
ed

u
le fo

r gran
tees 

M
ap

le A
ttach

m
en

t B
-P

aym
en

t Sectio
n

 4
: 

a. 
P

ro
vid

es fo
r p

aym
en

t o
f 3

0
%

 o
n

 e
xecu

tio
n

 

b
. 

P
ro

vid
es fo

r p
erfo

rm
an

ce p
aym

en
ts o

f u
p

 to
 3

0
%

 u
p

o
n

 

su
b

m
issio

n
 an

d
 ap

p
ro

val b
y G

ran
t M

an
ager o

f a d
etailed

 

co
n

stru
ctio

n
 en

gin
ee

rin
g d

esign
 w

h
ere x%

=
fib

er m
iles in

clu
d

ed
 in

 

th
e p

o
rtio

n
 o

f th
e d

esign
 

c. 
3

0%
 is reim

b
u

rsab
le fo

r ap
p

ro
ved

 e
xp

en
ses w

ith
 rem

ain
in

g 

am
o

u
n

t o
f th

is 3
0

%
 to

 b
e issu

ed
 o

n
 co

m
p

letio
n

 o
f first 5

0
%

 o
f 

p
ro

ject m
iles 

d
. 

C
o

n
stru

ctio
n

 co
m

p
letio

n
 p

aym
en

t o
f 8

%
 b

ased
 o

n
 gran

t 

agreem
en

t re co
m

p
lian

ce at co
m

p
letio

n
 (all testin

g an
d

 

su
b

m
issio

n
 o

f re
q

u
ired

 rep
o

rtin
g d

ata) 

e
. 

Fin
al p

aym
en

ts to
talin

g 2
%

 u
p

o
n

 su
b

m
issio

n
 o

f 6
 an

d
 1

2
 m

o
n

th
 

p
o

st p
ro

ject rep
o

rtin
g an

d
 all re

q
u

ired
 d

ata 

So
V

T A
ttach

m
en

t B
-Sectio

n
 4

 
a. 

P
ro

vid
es fo

r p
aym

en
t o

f 1
.7

%
 o

n
 exe

cu
tio

n
 

b
. 

9
0%

 d
u

e o
n

 co
m

p
letio

n
 o

f p
ro

ject; 

c. 
Fin

al 1
0

%
 u

p
o

n
 su

b
m

issio
n

 p
o

st-p
ro

ject rep
o

rtin
g after 6

 m
o

n
th

s 

Th
e C

o
n

stru
ctio

n
 R

FP
 re

q
u

ires ap
p

lican
ts co

n
stru

ctin
g p

rivate
 

in
frastru

ctu
re to

 accep
t a m

axim
u

m
 co

n
tract p

rice an
d

 n
o

 p
aym

en
t u

n
til 

w
o

rk is certified
 co

m
p

lete
, w

h
ereas ap

p
lican

ts b
u

ild
in

g p
u

b
licly o

w
n

ed
 

in
frastru

ctu
re aw

ard
s u

se an
 e

stim
ate

d
 p

rice an
d

 p
ro

vid
e fo

r 
p

erfo
rm

an
ce p

aym
en

ts (see d
etails ab

o
ve re M

ap
le vs So

V
T) 

 P
ro

ject R
e

ad
in

ess an
d

 G
ran

t A
cco

u
n

tab
ility – 

A
ssu

ran
ce. Th

e B
o

ard
 p

refers to
 set a co

n
siste

n
t gran

t 
d

isb
u

rsem
en

t p
ro

gram
 u

sin
g in

crem
en

tal p
aym

en
ts 

th
at are co

n
siste

n
t am

o
n

g all gran
te

es. G
ran

t 
d

isb
u

rsem
en

ts fo
r co

n
stru

ctio
n

 gran
ts req

u
ire p

ro
o

f 
o

f p
ro

ject read
in

ess an
d

 th
e fin

an
cial p

rep
ared

n
ess o

f 
th

e gran
tee

. (C
o

n
stru

ctio
n

 an
d

 p
lan

n
in

g p
rep

ared
n

ess 
is th

e su
b

ject o
f gran

ts u
n

d
er th

e B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 P
re

- 
co

n
stru

ctio
n

 G
ran

t P
ro

gram
.) N

o
 gran

t fu
n

d
s sh

all b
e 

d
istrib

u
te

d
 w

ith
o

u
t d

em
o

n
stratio

n
 to

 V
C

B
B

 staff o
f 

p
ro

ject read
in

ess an
d

 fin
an

cial p
rep

ared
n

ess, 
in

clu
d

in
g accep

tan
ce o

f a viab
le b

u
sin

ess p
lan

 
p

u
rsu

an
t to

 Su
b

sectio
n

 8
0

86
(d

). Th
ereafter, gran

ts 
sh

all b
e d

istrib
u

te
d

 acco
rd

in
g to

 th
e fo

llo
w

in
g (M

ap
le) 

sch
ed

u
le: 

- 
3

0%
 o

n
 execu

tio
n

 

- 
3

0%
 o

n
 V

C
B

B
 ap

p
ro

val o
f th

e to
tal e

n
gin

eerin
g 

d
esign

 fo
r th

e ap
p

ro
ved

 co
n

stru
ctio

n
 

- 
A

fte
r co

m
p

letio
n

 o
f 5

0
%

 o
f th

e p
ro

ject fib
er 

m
iles, u

p
 to

 3
0

%
 o

f th
e gran

t fu
n

d
in

g is 

availab
le to

 reim
b

u
rse verified

 co
n

stru
ctio

n
 

co
sts 

- 
1

0%
 u

p
o

n
 co

m
p

lian
ce w

ith
 testin

g o
f th

e 

ap
p

ro
ved

 n
etw

o
rk, p

ro
o

f o
f se

rvice an
d

 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
   

 
 

revised
 ap

p
ro

ved
 b

u
sin

ess p
lan

, an
d

 

d
o

cu
m

en
tatio

n
 req

u
irem

en
ts. 

 LFC
U

D
: Th

e R
FP

 se
ts u

p
 tw

o
 gran

t stru
ctu

res; tw
o

 

p
aym

en
t stru

ctu
res are accep

tab
le.  C

U
D

s sh
o

u
ld

 b
e ab

le 

to
 n

ego
tiate

 stricter stan
d

ard
s, o

r co
m

p
arab

le stan
d

ard
s 

d
ep

en
d

in
g o

n
 P

h
asin

g, su
b

ject to
 V

C
B

B
 ap

p
ro

val. 

(2
) A

d
o

p
t in

d
u

stry- 
acce

p
te

d
 e

n
gin

ee
rin

g 
stan

d
ard

 p
ro

m
o

tin
g 

reliab
ility, resilien

cy an
d

 
in

te
ro

p
erab

ility 
   M

in
o

r ch
an

ge: State a 
p

o
licy fo

r th
e in

ten
d

ed
 

resu
lts o

f e
n

gin
eerin

g 
stan

d
ard

s 

A
ttach

m
en

t A
-Sectio

n
 4

b
. D

etailed
 D

esign
-B

o
th

 So
V

T an
d

 M
ap

le
 

R
eq

u
ires co

m
p

lian
ce w

ith
 A

ct 7
1

 O
u

tsid
e P

lan
t D

esign
 Stan

d
ard

s; also
 

restated
 in

 Sectio
n

 C
 (1

) o
f A

ttach
m

en
t A

. 
A

ttach
m

en
t A

, 3
(f) req

u
ires in

clu
sio

n
 o

f in
d

u
stry-acce

p
te

d
 stan

d
ard

s fo
r 

su
stain

ab
ility, red

u
n

d
an

cy o
r resilien

cy. 
Th

ese
 req

u
irem

en
ts are also

 listed
 at 

h
ttp

s://p
u

b
licse

rvice.verm
o

n
t.go

v/co
n

ten
t/o

u
tsid

e
-p

lan
t-d

esign
-o

sp
- 

req
u

irem
en

ts. 
 N

O
TE: th

e ab
o

ve O
P

D
 p

ro
vid

es gu
id

an
ce, b

u
t d

o
es n

o
t set sp

ecific 
stan

d
ard

s. 

En
gin

ee
rin

g Stan
d

ard
s fo

r R
eliab

ility, R
e

silien
ce an

d
 

In
te

ro
p

erab
ility. Th

e V
C

B
B

 req
u

ires th
at all 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ity B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 Fu
n

d
 gran

t-fu
n

d
ed

 n
etw

o
rks 

m
eet 

en
gin

ee
rin

g stan
d

ard
s th

at e
n

su
re reliab

le 
an

d
 resilien

t n
etw

o
rks fo

r d
elivery o

f b
ro

ad
b

an
d

 
sp

eed
s o

f at least 10
0/1

00
 gb

p
s (m

egab
its) p

er 
lo

catio
n

 an
d

 e
n

su
re th

e 
n

etw
o

rk as co
n

stru
cted

 
sh

all m
eet availab

ility req
u

irem
en

ts o
f 9

9.9
%

 o
r 

greate
r. G

ran
te

es sh
all also

 co
m

p
ly w

ith
 ap

p
licab

le 
A

N
SI stan

d
ard

s, co
n

stru
ctio

n
 regu

latio
n

s, an
d

 
electrical co

d
es ad

o
p

te
d

 b
y th

e State
 o

f V
erm

o
n

t, 
an

d
 th

e O
u

tsid
e P

lan
t D

esign
 stan

d
ard

s (O
P

D
) set b

y 
th

e V
C

B
B

 as p
u

b
lish

ed
 at th

e tim
e o

f th
e gran

t 
ap

p
ro

val an
d

 in
co

rp
o

rated
 in

to
 th

e gran
t. O

P
D

 
stan

d
ard

s sh
all p

ro
vid

e en
gin

ee
rin

g gu
id

an
ce 

an
d

 
n

u
m

eric te
ch

n
ical stan

d
ard

s fo
r n

etw
o

rk 
co

n
stru

ctio
n

 to
 ach

ieve resilien
cy, reliab

ility, 
in

te
ro

p
erab

ility an
d

 o
p

en
 arch

itectu
re, in

clu
d

in
g b

u
t 

n
o

t lim
ited

 to
 stan

d
ard

s fo
r th

e m
in

im
u

m
 n

u
m

b
er 

an
d

 typ
e o

f fib
er stran

d
s, 

 

https://publicservice.vermont.gov/content/outside-plant-design-osp-requirements
https://publicservice.vermont.gov/content/outside-plant-design-osp-requirements
https://publicservice.vermont.gov/content/outside-plant-design-osp-requirements


Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

 
 

 fib
er sp

arin
g, allo

w
ab

le lo
ss b

u
d

get, gro
w

th
 p

lan
n

in
g, 

d
esign

ated
 p

o
w

e
r su

p
p

ly an
d

 b
acku

p
, P

O
N

 sp
litter an

d
 

O
LT p

o
rt p

er lo
catio

n
, an

d
 th

e m
in

im
u

m
 d

ro
p

 b
u

d
get. 

G
ran

te
es sh

all p
ro

vid
e accu

rate as-b
u

ilt d
o

cu
m

en
tatio

n
 

an
d

 sp
ecificatio

n
s fo

r each
 n

etw
o

rk in
co

rp
o

ratin
g 

gran
t-fu

n
d

ed
 assets. 

 LFC
U

D
: C

u
rren

t O
P

D
 an

d
 C

TC
 review

 o
f p

ro
p

o
sals is 

ad
eq

u
ate to

 en
su

re th
at reliab

le, resilien
t n

etw
o

rks 
w

ith
 in

te
ro

p
erab

ility are b
ein

g d
esign

ed
 an

d
 

co
n

stru
cte

d
.  

 Fo
r p

u
rp

o
ses o

f d
eterm

in
in

g q
u

alificatio
n

s fo
r a 

co
n

stru
ctio

n
 gran

t, e
n

gin
eerin

g an
d

 n
etw

o
rk e

xp
erts 

sh
o

u
ld

 d
evelo

p
 an

y n
ew

 stan
d

ard
s. Stan

d
ard

s 
b

o
rro

w
e

d
 fro

m
 d

ifferen
t regu

lato
ry (te

leco
m

) sch
em

es, 
su

ch
 as “availab

ility req
u

irem
en

ts o
f 9

9
.9

%
,” co

u
ld

 b
e 

p
ro

b
lem

atic.  
 A

n
y n

ew
 stan

d
ard

s sh
o

u
ld

 p
ro

m
o

te th
e g

o
a

ls, n
o

t 
p

rescrib
e sp

ecific arch
ite

ctu
re

. O
n

e size w
ill n

o
t fit all; 

so
lu

tio
n

s vary an
d

 evo
lve. A

p
p

lican
ts sh

o
u

ld
 h

ave th
e 

b
u

rd
en

 to
 d

em
o

n
strate

 th
at h

o
w

 th
eir ch

o
sen

 
arch

itectu
re an

d
 n

etw
o

rk m
ain

te
n

an
ce strategy is 

co
n

sisten
t w

ith
 in

d
u

stry stan
d

ard
s fo

r reliab
ility, 

resilien
cy an

d
 in

tero
p

erab
ility at d

ay o
n

e an
d

 o
ver tim

e. 
A

 testin
g regim

e to
 release fin

al fu
n

d
s, th

at co
n

firm
s 

im
p

lem
en

tatio
n

 o
n

 d
ay-o

n
e

, is also
 reaso

n
ab

le. 
P

erfo
rm

an
ce o

f th
e n

etw
o

rk o
vertim

e sh
o

u
ld

 b
e th

e 
resp

o
n

sib
ility o

f C
U

D
s,  

  

n
ew

 p
o

licy related
 to

 

en
gin

ee
rin

g 

 
See O

p
en

 A
rch

itectu
re P

o
licy at 8

0
86

(b
)(7

) 
 LFC

U
D

 – A
ct 7

1
 d

o
es n

o
t req

u
ire

 (o
r m

en
tio

n
) o

p
en

 
arch

itectu
re

. O
p

en
 arch

itectu
re is u

n
n

ecessary to
 

ach
ieve in

tero
p

erab
ility. A

n
y o

p
en

 arch
itectu

re 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

stan
d

ard
 sh

o
u

ld
 b

e o
p

tio
n

al. See co
m

m
en

t b
elo

w
 re: 

8
0

8
6

(b
) (7) (p

rio
ritizin

g p
u

b
lic assets).  

 

(3
) Estab

lish
 stan

d
ard

s 
fo

r reco
u

p
in

g o
f gran

t 
fu

n
d

s an
d

 tran
sferrin

g 
o

w
n

ersh
ip

 o
f gran

t- 
fu

n
d

ed
 n

etw
o

rk assets 
if a gran

tee m
ate

rially 
fails to

 co
m

p
ly w

ith
 th

e 
te

rm
s an

d
 co

n
d

itio
n

s o
f 

a gran
t 

See also
 8

0
8

6
(c)(5

) 
  C

h
an

ge: Im
p

lem
en

t a 
p

o
licy fo

r b
o

th
 

reco
u

p
m

en
t an

d
 

tran
sfer th

at in
clu

d
e 

m
o

re en
fo

rceab
ility 

th
ro

u
gh

 a lien
 o

r 
assign

m
en

t th
at can

 b
e 

su
b

o
rd

in
ate

d
 at th

e 
d

iscretio
n

 o
f th

e V
C

B
B

 
B

o
ard

. 

A
ttach

m
en

t B
-P

aym
en

t Sectio
n

 6
-B

o
th

 So
V

T an
d

 M
ap

le
 

If G
ran

te
e d

o
es n

o
t fu

lfill its o
b

ligatio
n

s o
r vio

lates th
e A

greem
en

t th
e 

State sh
all n

o
tify o

f th
e b

reach
; 3

0
 d

ay cu
re p

erio
d

; State
 m

ay set o
ff an

d
 

h
o

ld
 p

aym
en

ts u
n

til cu
red

. If n
o

 cu
re in

 3
0

 d
ays, State

 m
ay re

q
u

ire 
gran

te
e to

 im
m

ed
iately re

im
b

u
rse th

e State
 an

y p
o

rtio
n

 o
f gran

t fu
n

d
s 

n
o

t exp
en

d
ed

 o
r im

p
ro

p
erly e

xp
en

d
ed

, o
r retain

 an
y p

o
rtio

n
 o

f gran
t o

r 
o

th
er fu

n
d

s d
u

e gran
tee eq

u
al to

 th
e reim

b
u

rsem
en

t am
o

u
n

t an
d

 m
ay 

te
rm

in
ate

 w
ith

 w
ritten

 n
o

tice 
 A

ttach
m

en
t D

-So
V

T-C
o

n
tracto

r B
reach

, Erro
rs an

d
 O

m
issio

n
s p

ro
visio

n
, 

an
y b

reach
 h

as to
 b

e co
rrecte

d
 at n

o
 co

st to
 th

e State
 

R
eco

u
p

in
g G

ran
t Fu

n
d

s: Th
e V

C
B

B
 is o

b
ligated

 b
y law

 
to

 en
su

re each
 gran

tee is acco
u

n
tab

le fo
r th

e 
exp

en
d

itu
res au

th
o

rized
 in

 th
e gran

t, an
d

 to
 p

ro
vid

e a 
m

ean
s fo

r reco
u

p
m

en
t in

 th
e even

t o
f 

n
o

n
p

erfo
rm

an
ce. 

If at an
y tim

e p
rio

r to
 d

istrib
u

tio
n

 
o

f u
p

 to
 1

00
%

 o
f gran

t fu
n

d
s, V

C
B

B
 staff d

eterm
in

e 
th

at a gran
tee

 fails to
 m

eet th
e term

s an
d

 co
n

d
itio

n
s 

o
f a 

gran
t, staff sh

all p
ro

vid
e w

ritte
n

 n
o

tice to
 th

e 
gran

te
e an

d
 to

 th
e V

C
B

B
 B

o
ard

 id
en

tifyin
g th

e su
b

ject 
n

o
n

p
erfo

rm
an

ce. Th
ere sh

all b
e a cu

re p
erio

d
 o

f 3
0

 
d

ays fro
m

 th
e d

ate
 o

f th
e n

o
tice d

u
rin

g w
h

ich
 tim

e 
gran

t fu
n

d
s sh

all n
o

t b
e d

istrib
u

te
d

 to
 th

e gran
tee. 

G
ran

te
e’s 

failu
re to

 cu
re n

o
n

p
erfo

rm
an

ce m
ay 

resu
lt in

 can
cellatio

n
 o

f th
e gran

t 
o

r recall o
f u

p
 to

 
1

0
0

%
 o

f gran
t fu

n
d

s at th
e d

iscretio
n

 o
f th

e V
C

B
B

 
B

o
ard

 an
d

 th
e sale o

f th
e  n

etw
o

rk assets to
 an

o
th

er 
p

u
b

lic n
etw

o
rk o

p
erato

r. Th
e gran

te
e m

ay ap
p

eal staff 
d

ecisio
n

s o
f gran

t n
o

n
co

m
p

lian
ce o

r n
o

n
p

erfo
rm

an
ce 

to
 th

e V
C

B
B

 B
o

ard
 at a regu

larly sch
ed

u
led

 p
u

b
lic 

m
eetin

g w
ith

in
 6

0 d
ays o

f th
e w

ritte
n

 n
o

tice. 
 LFC

U
D

 R
eco

u
p

in
g Fu

n
d

s  - circu
m

stan
ces m

ay vary; n
o

t all 
circu

m
stan

ces – esp
ecially in

 a co
n

stru
ctio

n
 p

ro
ject – can

 
b

e reso
lved

 in
 3

0
 d

ays; reco
m

m
en

d
 reaso

n
ab

le tim
e 

p
erio

d
s an

d
 criteria – su

ch
 as 3

0 d
ays to

 cu
re o

r d
evelo

p
 a 

rem
ed

iatio
n

 p
lan

.  A
d

eq
u

ate p
ro

cess to
 en

su
re

 all are 
treated

 fairly an
d

 exp
ed

itio
u

sly.  

      Tran
sfer o

f G
ran

t-Fu
n

d
ed

 A
ssets. Th

e V
C

B
B

 is 
o

b
ligated

 b
y law

 to
 e

n
su

re th
at th

e assets co
n

stru
cte

d
 

b
y e

ach
 gran

te
e m

ee
t th

e p
u

b
lic in

te
rest o

b
jectives o

f 
A

ct 7
1

, in
clu

d
in

g b
u

t n
o

t lim
ited

 to
 u

n
ive

rsal service 
an

d
 co

n
tin

u
o

u
s o

p
eratio

n
 o

f th
e assets co

n
stru

cte
d

 
u

sin
g th

e C
o

m
m

u
n

ity B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 Fu
n

d
. Th

e gran
te

e is 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

acco
u

n
tab

le fo
r th

e p
u

b
lic in

te
rest resu

lts set b
y th

e 
p

o
licies o

f th
e V

C
B

B
 B

o
ard

 an
d

 A
ct 71

. Th
e V

C
B

B
 is 

 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

 
 

o
b

ligated
 b

y law
 to

 p
ro

vid
e a m

ean
s to

 reclaim
 an

d
 

tran
sfer assets co

n
stru

cted
 u

sin
g C

o
m

m
u

n
ity 

B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 Fu
n

d
s if th

e te
rm

s o
f th

e gran
t are n

o
t 

m
et, in

clu
d

in
g b

u
t n

o
t lim

ited
 to

 th
e o

p
eratio

n
 o

f th
e 

n
etw

o
rk in

 a m
an

n
er th

at m
eets th

e p
u

b
lic in

terest 
d

escrib
ed

 in
 th

e V
C

B
B

’s p
o

licies an
d

 A
ct 7

1
. 

Th
erefo

re, p
rio

r to
 d

istrib
u

tio
n

 o
f gran

t fu
n

d
s, th

e 
V

C
B

B
 sh

all file a fo
rm

 U
C

C
 1

 w
ith

 th
e V

erm
o

n
t 

Secretary o
f State

, d
esign

atin
g th

e n
am

e o
f th

e 
gran

te
e, th

e m
iles o

f fib
er an

d
 m

u
n

icip
al lo

catio
n

 o
f 

th
e n

etw
o

rk co
n

stru
ctio

n
, an

d
 sp

ecifyin
g th

e State o
f 

V
erm

o
n

t as th
e lien

 h
o

ld
er su

b
ject to

 th
e term

s o
f th

e 
gran

t an
d

 th
ese acco

u
n

tab
ility p

o
licies. It is th

e p
o

licy 
o

f th
e V

C
B

B
 to

 su
b

o
rd

in
ate its lien

 in
terest to

 th
e 

in
te

rest in
 title fo

r p
u

rp
o

ses o
f secu

rin
g fin

an
cin

g th
at, 

in
 th

e d
iscretio

n
 o

f th
e V

C
B

B
, is reaso

n
ab

ly likely to
 

m
eet th

e term
s o

f th
e gran

te
e’s b

u
sin

ess p
lan

 an
d

 
p

ro
m

o
te th

e su
stain

ab
ility o

f gran
t-fu

n
d

ed
 n

etw
o

rk. 
Th

e lien
 sh

all b
e release

d
 u

p
o

n
 tw

en
ty years o

f 
o

p
eratio

n
 o

f th
e n

etw
o

rk b
y gran

tee o
r su

ch
 th

ird
 

p
arty as th

e V
C

B
B

 B
o

ard
 sh

all ap
p

ro
ve. Th

e V
C

B
B

 w
ill 

su
m

m
arize th

e gran
t te

rm
s an

d
 p

u
b

lic in
te

rest 
acco

u
n

tab
ility p

o
licies o

f th
e V

C
B

B
 th

at attach
 to

 th
e 

o
p

eratio
n

 o
f th

e n
etw

o
rk in

 th
e lien

, an
d

 p
ro

vid
e 

gran
te

es w
ith

 a fo
rm

 o
f agreem

en
t th

at p
ro

vid
es th

e 
te

rm
s an

d
 e

ffect o
f th

e lien
. Sh

o
u

ld
 th

e V
C

B
B

 exe
rcise 

its righ
ts u

n
d

er th
e lien

, it sh
all h

ave th
e righ

t to
 

tran
sfer title to

 th
e n

etw
o

rk assets to
 a th

ird
-p

arty 
p

u
b

lic en
tity th

at is a co
m

m
u

n
icatio

n
s u

n
io

n
 d

istrict o
r 

o
th

er p
u

b
lic in

te
rest o

p
erato

r o
f b

ro
ad

b
an

d
 n

etw
o

rks 
in

 lieu
 o

f reco
u

p
m

en
t o

f th
e gran

t fu
n

d
s. Th

e gran
tee 

m
ay ap

p
eal staff d

ecisio
n

s o
f gran

t n
o

n
co

m
p

lian
ce o

r 
n

o
n

p
erfo

rm
an

ce to
 th

e V
C

B
B

 B
o

ard
 at a regu

larly 
sch

ed
u

led
 p

u
b

lic m
eetin

g w
ith

in
 6

0
 d

ays o
f th

e 
w

ritten
 n

o
tice. 

 LFC
U

D
 – A

sset Tran
sfers.  Th

is sectio
n

 seem
s to

 b
e 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

d
o

in
g m

u
ch

 m
o

re th
an

 d
evelo

p
in

g stan
d

ard
s fo

r 
tran

sferrin
g o

w
n

ersh
ip

 o
f gran

t-fu
n

d
ed

 assets d
u

rin
g 

th
e p

erfo
rm

an
ce p

erio
d

 o
f th

e gran
t. Im

p
o

sin
g a lien

 
d

ay o
n

e – fo
r tw

en
ty-years – seem

s like an
 o

u
tsized

 
so

lu
tio

n
.  W

e h
a

ve referred
 to

 o
u

r leg
a

l co
u

n
sel fo

r 
reco

m
m

en
d

a
tio

n
s. 

 Stan
d

ard
s w

o
u

ld
 an

sw
e

r q
u

estio
n

s su
ch

 as  

- 
W

h
at “failu

res” w
arran

t asset tran
sfer? 

- 
W

h
at sh

o
u

ld
 b

e th
e o

b
jectives o

f an
 asset 

tran
sfer? M

ain
tain

in
g co

n
tin

u
ity? M

ain
tain

in
g 

co
n

tin
u

ity? Lo
cal co

n
tro

l?  
- 

W
h

at d
u

e p
ro

cess is req
u

ired
?  

- 
W

h
at righ

ts d
o

 C
U

D
s o

r th
eir co

m
m

u
n

ities w
h

ich
 

vo
te

d
 to

 create th
em

 h
ave in

 th
e p

ro
cess? 

- 
Sh

o
u

ld
 C

U
D

s b
e ab

le to
 d

esign
ate an

o
th

er C
U

D
 

o
r lo

cal au
th

o
rity su

ch
 as a co

u
n

ty p
lan

n
in

g 
co

m
m

issio
n

. Sh
o

u
ld

 su
ch

 d
esign

atio
n

 b
e  su

b
ject 

to
 V

C
B

B
 ap

p
ro

val o
r co

m
m

u
n

ity ap
p

ro
val? 

- 
H

o
w

 lo
n

g after th
e gran

t p
erfo

rm
an

ce p
erio

d
 

m
ay th

e V
C

B
B

 exe
rcise au

th
o

rity to
 tran

sfer 

assets ?  

 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

(4
) Estab

lish
 a co

n
tin

u
ity 

o
f o

p
eratio

n
s p

lan
 

ap
p

licab
le to

 a n
etw

o
rk 

o
w

n
ed

 b
y a C

U
D

 th
at, 

am
o

n
g o

th
er th

in
gs, 

co
n

tem
p

lates th
e B

o
ard

 
assu

m
in

g o
p

eratio
n

al 
co

n
tro

l o
f a n

etw
o

rk if 
n

ece
ssary to

 m
ain

tain
 

u
n

in
te

rru
p

te
d

 
b

ro
ad

b
an

d
 se

rvice 
   C

h
an

ge: A
d

o
p

tio
n

 o
f a 

C
o

n
tin

u
ity P

o
licy 

R
eq

u
irem

en
t an

d
 n

o
tice 

o
f d

efau
lt. 

   

TB
D

 
C

o
n

tin
u

ity o
f Service

. R
eliab

ility an
d

 in
tero

p
erab

ility 
are state

d
 o

b
jectives o

f A
ct 7

1
. Th

e V
C

B
B

 is o
b

ligated
 

b
y law

 to
 p

ro
vid

e an
 o

p
eratio

n
s p

lan
 th

at assu
res 

o
p

eratio
n

s o
f each

 n
etw

o
rk co

n
tro

lled
 b

y a C
U

D
 an

d
 

fu
n

d
ed

 b
y th

e C
o

m
m

u
n

ity B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 Fu
n

d
. Each

 
gran

te
e th

at is a C
U

D
 sh

all (a) an
n

u
ally p

rep
are an

d
 

su
b

m
it to

 th
e V

C
B

B
 a co

n
tin

u
ity p

lan
 th

at reaso
n

ab
ly 

sets fo
rth

 th
e o

p
eratin

g req
u

irem
en

ts o
f th

e n
etw

o
rk, 

an
d

 (b
) sign

 an
 agreem

en
t w

ith
 th

e V
C

B
B

 to
 allo

w
 th

e 
V

C
B

B
 to

 assu
re o

p
eratio

n
 o

f n
etw

o
rk assets in

 th
e

 
even

t o
f a d

efau
lt o

n
 th

e o
b

ligatio
n

s o
f th

e C
U

D
 o

r its 
o

p
erato

r o
f th

e n
etw

o
rk th

at th
reate

n
 th

e co
n

tin
u

ity 
o

f service p
ro

vid
ed

 to
 cu

sto
m

ers, in
clu

d
in

g b
u

t n
o

t 
lim

ited
 to

 th
e righ

t to
 d

esign
ate a th

ird
 p

arty o
p

erato
r, 

at V
C

B
B

’s d
iscretio

n
, to

 e
n

su
re o

p
eratio

n
 o

f th
e 

n
etw

o
rk fo

r a reaso
n

ab
le fee

 u
n

til co
n

tin
u

ity o
f 

service is assu
red

 an
d

 th
e reliab

ility/ availab
ility 

stan
d

ard
s ad

o
p

ted
 b

y th
e V

C
B

B
 are m

et. It is th
e 

p
o

licy an
d

 o
b

ligatio
n

 o
f th

e V
C

B
B

 to
 take su

ch
 

reaso
n

ab
le step

s as it d
eterm

in
es n

ece
ssary, at th

e 
gran

te
e’s exp

en
se, u

p
o

n
 ten

 d
ays w

ritten
 n

o
tice fro

m
 

th
e d

ate th
e V

C
B

B
 B

o
ard

 d
eterm

in
es th

at o
p

eratio
n

 o
f 

th
e assets fu

n
d

ed
 b

y th
e C

o
m

m
u

n
ity B

ro
ad

b
an

d
 Fu

n
d

 
d

o
 n

o
t d

eliver b
ro

ad
b

an
d

 service to
 th

e service area 
d

esign
ated

 in
 th

e ap
p

ro
ved

 gran
t ap

p
licatio

n
 th

at 
m

eet th
e V

C
B

B
 availab

ility/reliab
ility stan

d
ard

 o
f 

9
9

.9%
 o

r th
e V

C
B

B
 receives n

o
tice o

f d
efau

lt p
u

rsu
an

t 
to

 Su
b

sectio
n

 8
0

86
(h

). Th
e V

C
B

B
 B

o
ard

 sh
all receive 

an
y n

o
tices issu

ed
 u

n
d

er Sectio
n

 8
0

86
(h

) o
f Title 30

. 
Th

e V
C

B
B

 m
ay co

n
sid

er co
n

su
m

e
r co

m
p

lain
ts o

f 
service o

u
tages received

 b
y th

e D
ep

artm
en

t o
f P

u
b

lic 
Service as w

e
ll as o

th
er th

ird
-p

arty testin
g to

 
d

eterm
in

e co
n

tin
u

ity o
f se

rvice. G
ran

tees sh
all 

p
rio

ritize service d
elivery d

u
rin

g p
erio

d
s o

f d
efau

lt o
r 

b
an

kru
p

tcy, w
h

ich
 o

b
ligatio

n
 to

 o
p

erate sh
all su

rvive 
th

e d
u

ratio
n

 o
f th

e gran
t p

ayo
u

t fo
r a p

erio
d

 o
f 

tw
en

ty years fro
m

 th
e

 d
ate o

f th
e gran

t aw
ard

. 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

LFC
U

D
:  Th

is sectio
n

 is lim
ited

 ap
p

licab
ility to

 “a n
etw

o
rk 

o
w

n
ed

 b
y C

U
D

s.” Sim
ilarly, 8

08
6(h

) ap
p

lies o
n

ly to
 C

U
D

s 

th
at h

ave b
o

rro
w

e
d

 fu
n

d
s.  

 Th
at said

, th
e re

q
u

ired
 co

n
tin

u
ity p

lan
 sh

o
u

ld
 b

e 

d
evelo

p
ed

 in
 co

n
cert w

ith
 C

U
D

s (im
p

acte
d

 

m
u

n
icip

alities) an
d

 sh
o

u
ld

 co
n

sid
er u

n
d

er w
h

at 

circu
m

stan
ces V

C
B

B
 co

n
tro

l is n
ecessary. Th

e p
ro

p
o

sal 

su
ggests th

e V
C

B
B

 w
h

ich
 is n

o
t a q

u
asi-ju

d
icial b

o
d

y o
r a 

regu
lato

r, m
ay take o

ver a m
u

n
icip

ally-o
w

n
ed

 n
etw

o
rk 

b
ased

 o
n

 its assessm
en

t o
f co

n
su

m
er co

m
p

lain
t o

r 

service q
u

ality, 1
5

 years fro
m

 n
o

w
. Th

is seem
s to

 stretch
 

th
e in

ten
t o

f th
e legislatio

n
. W

e h
a

ve referred
 th

is to
 o

u
r 

leg
a

l co
u

n
sel.   



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
   

(5
) P

ro
h

ib
it th

e sale o
r 

tran
sfer o

f gran
t-fu

n
d

ed
 

n
etw

o
rk assets w

ith
o

u
t 

th
e p

rio
r w

ritte
n

 
ap

p
ro

val o
f th

e B
o

ard
; 

See also
 8

0
8

6
(c)(9

) 
 C

h
an

ge: P
o

licy fo
r 

Tran
sfer req

u
ired

 
(C

u
rren

t certificatio
n

 is 
n

o
t likely to

 b
e b

in
d

in
g 

o
r actio

n
ab

le, an
d

 d
o

es 
n

o
t set stan

d
ard

 fo
r 

ap
p

ro
val o

f tran
sfer) 

Th
e C

o
n

stru
ctio

n
 R

FP
 re

q
u

ires ap
p

lican
ts to

 certify th
is re

q
u

irem
en

t. See
 

Eligib
ility Screen

in
g, P

art 2
, Sectio

n
 6

. 
A

u
th

o
rized

 O
w

n
ersh

ip
 Tran

sfers. In
 o

rd
er to

 en
su

re 
th

at o
w

n
ersh

ip
 o

f gran
t-fu

n
d

ed
 n

etw
o

rk assets are 
n

o
t so

ld
, assign

ed
 o

r licen
sed

 w
ith

o
u

t th
e w

ritten
 

au
th

o
rizatio

n
 o

f th
e V

C
B

B
 B

o
ard

, o
w

n
ersh

ip
 o

f all 
assets co

n
stru

cted
 w

ith
 gran

ts o
f th

e C
o

m
m

u
n

ity 
B

ro
ad

b
an

d
 Fu

n
d

 w
ill b

e h
eld

 in
 th

e n
am

e o
f th

e 
gran

te
e an

d
 th

e assets sh
all b

e su
b

ject to
 a lien

 h
eld

 
b

y th
e V

C
B

B
 o

r th
e State o

f V
erm

o
n

t (see V
C

B
B

 p
o

licy 
3

0
 V

SA
 80

86
(c)(3

)).Th
e V

C
B

B
 B

o
ard

, in
 co

n
sid

erin
g a 

req
u

est to
 tran

sfer an
y in

terest in
 title to

 th
e assets , 

sh
all act o

n
 th

e req
u

est w
ith

in
 3

0
 d

ays b
y review

 o
f 

th
e tran

sferee’s ab
ility an

d
 agreem

en
t to

 m
ee

t th
e 

p
u

b
lic in

te
rest o

b
ligatio

n
s an

d
 su

rvivin
g gran

t 
co

n
tractu

al o
b

ligatio
n

s th
at ap

p
ly to

 assets fu
n

d
ed

 b
y 

th
e C

o
m

m
u

n
ity B

ro
ad

b
an

d
 Fu

n
d

. Su
ch

 tran
sfer sh

all 
b

e su
b

ject to
 a n

ew
 lien

 o
f th

e V
C

B
B

 o
r th

e State
 o

f 
V

erm
o

n
t secu

rin
g its in

te
rest p

u
rsu

an
t to

 its p
o

licy 
gran

te
d

 b
y th

e tran
sferee. It is th

e p
o

licy o
f th

e V
C

B
B

 
to

 su
b

o
rd

in
ate its lien

 in
terest to

 th
e tran

sfer o
f an

 
in

te
rest in

 title to
 th

e fu
n

d
ed

 assets fo
r p

u
rp

o
ses o

f 
secu

rin
g fin

an
cin

g th
at, in

 th
e d

iscretio
n

 o
f th

e V
C

B
B

, 
is reaso

n
ab

ly likely to
 m

eet th
e term

s o
f th

e gran
tee’s 

o
r tran

sferee’s b
u

sin
ess p

lan
 an

d
 p

ro
m

o
te th

e 
su

stain
ab

ility o
f gran

t-fu
n

d
ed

 n
etw

o
rk. Th

is o
b

ligatio
n

 
to

 rece
ive ap

p
ro

val o
f tran

sfer o
f an

 in
terest in

 title (o
f 

an
y kin

d
) an

d
 th

e lien
 sh

all b
e released

 u
p

o
n

 tw
en

ty 
years o

f o
p

eratio
n

 o
f th

e n
etw

o
rk b

y gran
tee

 o
r su

ch
 

th
ird

 p
arty as th

e V
C

B
B

 B
o

ard
 sh

all ap
p

ro
ve. 

 LFC
U

D
:   W

e assu
m

ed
 th

e p
ro

h
ib

itio
n

 w
as align

ed
 w

ith
 

F.A
.R

. stan
d

ard
s fo

r p
ro

h
ib

itin
g sale o

f fed
eral assets 

p
rio

r to
 co

m
p

letio
n

 o
f p

erfo
rm

an
ce.  O

th
er fed

eral 

gran
t p

ro
gram

s m
ay p

ro
vid

e
 gu

id
an

ce o
r less o

n
ero

u
s 

o
p

tio
n

s. A
lso

,  20
 year lien

 seem
s u

n
n

ecessary to
 

ach
ieve th

e o
b

jective.  W
e h

a
ve referred

 th
is to

 o
u

r 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

leg
a

l co
u

n
sel.   

(6
) A

llo
w

 an
 ap

p
lican

t to
 

see
k re

co
n

sid
eratio

n
 o

f 
an

 ad
ve

rse B
o

ard
 

d
ecisio

n
 

 C
h

an
ge: A

d
o

p
tio

n
 o

f 
A

p
p

eal P
o

licy R
e

q
u

ired
 

Th
e C

o
n

stru
ctio

n
 R

FP
 p

ro
vid

es fo
r an

 ap
p

eal o
f an

 ad
verse

 B
o

ard
 d

ecisio
n

 
w

ith
in

 3
0

 d
ays 

A
p

p
eal. U

n
less o

th
erw

ise p
ro

vid
ed

 h
erein

, it is th
e 

p
o

licy o
f th

e V
C

B
B

 to
 h

ear an
 ap

p
eal b

y a gran
t 

ap
p

lican
t o

f an
y ad

verse d
ecisio

n
 o

f th
e V

C
B

B
 

(in
clu

d
in

g b
u

t n
o

t lim
ited

 to
 th

e B
o

ard
) at th

e n
ext 

regu
larly sch

ed
u

led
 m

eetin
g o

f th
e V

C
B

B
 B

o
ard

 th
at is 

at least 30
 d

ays, b
u

t n
o

t m
o

re th
an

 6
0

 d
ays, fro

m
 th

e 
d

ate o
f su

ch
 ad

verse d
ecisio

n
. 

 LFC
U

D
:  R

eco
n

sid
eratio

n
, n

o
t an

 ap
p

eal, is ap
p

ro
p

riate 
p

ro
cess; V

C
B

B
 is n

o
t a q

u
asi ju

d
icial b

o
d

y.   

 

(7
) En

su
re p

ro
ject 

co
m

p
letio

n
 w

ith
in

 a 
reaso

n
ab

le p
erio

d
 o

f 
tim

e an
d

 co
n

sisten
t 

w
ith

 ap
p

licab
le fed

eral 
law

 an
d

 gu
id

an
ce 

M
in

o
r ch

an
ge – 

exte
n

sio
n

 p
ro

cess 

G
ran

t d
u

ratio
n

 term
s are reaso

n
ab

le an
d

 cu
sto

m
ary; R

FP
 req

u
ires 

co
n

stru
ctio

n
 to

 b
e co

m
p

leted
 w

ith
in

 2
4

 m
o

n
th

s 
C

o
m

p
letio

n
 P

erio
d

. It is th
e p

o
licy o

f th
e V

C
B

B
 th

at 
gran

ts m
ad

e u
n

d
er th

e C
o

m
m

u
n

ity B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 Fu
n

d
 

w
ill b

e co
m

p
leted

, in
clu

d
in

g all req
u

irem
en

ts m
ad

e fo
r 

fin
al p

aym
en

t an
d

 co
m

p
lian

ce w
ith

 all fed
eral an

d
 

state gran
t req

u
irem

en
ts, w

ith
in

 2
4

 m
o

n
th

s o
f th

e 
d

ate o
f th

e gran
t      u

n
less th

e term
 o

f th
e gran

t is 
exte

n
d

ed
 b

y d
ecisio

n
 o

f th
e V

C
B

B
 B

o
ard

 fo
r cau

se. 
 

 

(8
) C

o
m

p
ly w

ith
 

A
d

m
in

istrative B
u

lletin
s 

N
o

. 5
 (G

ran
t 

A
greem

en
ts) an

d
 3

.5 
(C

o
n

tracts) 
N

o
 p

o
licy req

u
ired

 

A
ttach

m
en

t B
 Sectio

n
 9

 fo
r b

o
th

 So
V

T an
d

 M
ap

le im
p

o
ses A

d
m

in
istrative 

B
u

lletin
 5

 p
ro

visio
n

s w
ith

 resp
ect to

 Su
b

gran
tin

g; A
ttach

m
en

t C
 , Stan

d
ard

 
State P

ro
visio

n
s fo

r C
o

n
tracts an

d
 G

ran
ts is in

clu
d

ed
 in

 all V
C

C
B

 G
ran

t 
A

greem
en

ts. 

N
o

 V
C

B
B

 p
o

licy is req
u

ired
. Th

ese State co
n

tract 
p

ro
visio

n
s are in

co
rp

o
rated

 in
to

 V
C

B
B

 gran
ts as 

req
u

ired
 b

y law
. In

 th
e even

t th
at th

e State
 P

ro
visio

n
s 

co
n

flict w
ith

 fed
eral gran

t req
u

irem
en

ts, th
e V

C
B

B
 

staff w
ill seek gu

id
an

ce fro
m

 th
e A

tto
rn

ey G
en

eral an
d

 
w

ill ad
vise th

e gran
tee an

d
 th

e V
C

B
B

 B
o

ard
 in

 w
ritin

g 
o

f an
y d

eviatio
n

s fro
m

 state p
ro

to
co

ls. 
 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

8
08

6
(h

)(1
) 

R
eq

u
ires C

U
D

s th
at 

b
o

rro
w

 fu
n

d
s fo

r th
e 

p
u

rp
o

ses o
f fin

an
cin

g a 
b

ro
ad

b
an

d
 p

ro
ject to

 
im

m
ed

iate
ly p

ro
vid

e 
w

ritten
 n

o
tice to

 th
e V

C
B

B
 

B
o

ard
 in

 th
e even

t th
e 

C
U

D
 b

eco
m

es aw
are th

at 
it is at risk o

f fin
an

cial 
in

so
lven

cy o
r o

f d
efau

ltin
g 

o
n

 th
e p

aym
en

t o
f 

p
rin

cip
al an

d
 in

terest 

TO
 B

E A
D

D
ED

 TO
 R

FP
/G

R
A

N
T A

G
R

EEM
EN

TS 
P

o
te

n
tial D

efau
lt, N

o
tice an

d
 R

e
co

m
m

en
d

atio
n

s. It is th
e 

p
o

licy o
f th

e V
C

B
B

 to
 p

ro
m

p
tly p

ro
vid

e w
ritte

n
 n

o
tice to

 
th

e G
o

vern
o

r, th
e Treasu

rer an
d

 th
e Jo

in
t Fiscal 

C
o

m
m

ittee u
p

o
n

 rece
ip

t o
f su

ch
 n

o
tice fro

m
 a C

U
D

, an
d

 
to

 p
rep

are reco
m

m
en

d
atio

n
s an

d
 ad

vice to
 e

n
su

re 
co

n
tin

u
ed

 o
p

erab
ility an

d
 p

o
te

n
tial tran

sfer o
f title in

 
th

e even
t th

at th
e p

o
te

n
tial d

efau
lt o

ccu
rs an

d
 is n

o
t 

cu
red

. Th
e V

C
B

B
’s p

o
licy is th

at in
 th

e even
t th

at su
ch

 
d

efau
lt resu

lts in
 th

e tran
sfer o

f title to
 th

e fu
n

d
ed

 
n

etw
o

rk assets, th
e V

C
B

B
 w

ill co
n

sid
er th

e tran
sfer o

f 
title su

b
ject to

 its p
o

licies as if th
e C

U
D

 o
r gran

te
e h

ad
 

req
u

ested
 th

e tran
sfer o

f title. 
  

Su
n

se
t P

ro
visio

n
s (an

d
 P

o
licy Im

p
lem

e
n

tatio
n

 – 8
0

8
9

(a) 
 

 TB
D

: R
eq

u
irem

en
t: p

lan
 fo

r tran
sferrin

g its assets, liab
ilities, an

d
 legal an

d
 co

n
tractu

al o
b

ligatio
n

s to
 

an
o

th
er ap

p
ro

p
riate State en

tity. Th
e B

o
ard

 m
ay in

clu
d

e in
 its rep

o
rt a reco

m
m

en
d

atio
n

 re
gard

in
g 

th
e co

n
tin

u
ed

 existe
n

ce o
f th

e B
o

ard
 b

eyo
n

d
 its statu

to
ry su

n
set d

ate
. 

 
Th

is p
ro

visio
n

 im
p

acts w
h

o
 h

o
ld

s th
e righ

t/o
b

ligatio
n

 
to

 o
versee acco

u
n

tab
ility an

d
 e

xe
rcise co

n
tractu

al 
righ

ts. 
 LFC

U
D

: C
U

D
s h

ave in
d

ep
en

d
en

t re
sp

o
n

sib
ilities th

at 
w

ill su
rvive. 

 

 

Im
p

lied
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility o
f th

e V
C

B
B

 fo
r th

e P
u

b
lic In

terest 
 

G
ran

t Evalu
atio

n
 P

rio
rities 8

0
8

6
(b

) 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

“Th
e B

o
ard

 sh
all give 

p
rio

rity…
” 

 C
h

an
ge: P

o
licy 

statem
en

t fo
r h

o
w

 to
 

d
eal w

ith
 Su

b
sectio

n
 (b

) 
“p

rio
rities” is n

eed
ed

 – 
as p

ro
p

o
sed

. 

Each
 o

f th
ese is in

clu
d

ed
 in

 th
e C

o
n

stru
ctio

n
 R

FP
, P

ro
ject P

rio
ritizatio

n
 

N
u

m
b

er (3
) is also

 in
clu

d
ed

 in
 A

ttach
m

en
t A

, Sectio
n

 4
(f)-R

etail 
B

ro
ad

b
an

d
 Service req

u
irem

en
t fo

r n
o

 d
ata cap

s, o
r th

ro
ttled

 d
ata fo

r at 
least 5

 years fro
m

 d
ate o

f aw
ard

 fo
r So

V
T an

d
 Sectio

n
 (B

)(4
)(g) fo

r M
ap

le
 

 In
 ad

d
itio

n
, as p

art o
f th

e M
aster Services A

greem
en

t b
etw

e
en

 So
V

T an
d

 
C

o
n

so
lid

ate
d

, Sch
ed

u
le C

 in
clu

d
es ad

d
itio

n
al co

n
su

m
er p

ro
te

ctio
n

 
m

easu
res an

d
 also

 in
co

rp
o

rates th
e FC

C
’s affo

rd
ab

ility p
ro

gram
. 

 Th
ese

 p
ro

visio
n

s o
f Su

b
sectio

n
 8

0
8

6
(b

) re
q

u
ire in

fo
rm

atio
n

 to
 b

e 
co

llecte
d

 in
 th

e gran
t p

ro
cess so

 th
at it can

 b
e co

n
sid

ered
. H

o
w

ever, in
 

o
rd

er to
 “give p

rio
rity” th

e V
C

B
B

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e req

u
ired

 to
 co

n
sid

er G
ran

t 
ap

p
licatio

n
s a

g
a

in
st each

 o
th

er. Th
at h

as n
o

t b
een

 th
e re

ality o
f th

e gran
t 

p
ro

cess o
r th

e d
evelo

p
m

en
t o

f th
e C

U
D

s. 

P
rio

rity o
f U

n
ive

rsal Service an
d

 G
eo

grap
h

ic 
D

istrib
u

tio
n

 o
f Fu

n
d

s. Th
e p

o
licy o

f th
e V

C
B

B
 is to

 
co

n
sid

er th
e p

rio
rities stated

 in
 Su

b
sectio

n
 8

08
6

(b
) in

 
m

akin
g its gran

t d
ecisio

n
s, an

d
 to

 exam
in

e th
em

 
acro

ss th
e gran

t p
ro

gram
 as a w

h
o

le, n
o

t o
n

 a 
co

m
p

arative b
asis. A

ll co
n

stru
ctio

n
 gran

ts req
u

ire a 
U

n
ive

rsal Service P
lan

. [808
6

(a)] In
 o

rd
er to

 ad
d

ress 
th

e o
ve

r-arch
in

g o
b

jective o
f U

n
iversal Service as w

ell 
as to

 e
n

su
re geo

grap
h

ic d
iversity o

f C
o

m
m

u
n

ity 
B

ro
ad

b
an

d
 Fu

n
d

 allo
catio

n
s th

e p
o

licy o
f th

e V
C

B
B

 is 
to

 rese
rve an

 allo
catio

n
 fo

r e
ach

 geo
grap

h
ic area 

rep
rese

n
ted

 b
y C

U
D

s e
xistin

g as o
f Ju

n
e 3

0
, 2

02
1

, an
d

 
to

 review
 gran

t ap
p

licatio
n

s in
 th

e co
n

text o
f th

o
se 

allo
catio

n
s in

 th
e o

rd
er th

ey are p
resen

ted
 an

d
 

d
esign

ated
 b

y th
e V

C
B

B
 as p

ro
ject read

y an
d

 
co

n
sisten

t w
ith

 V
C

B
B

 p
o

licy. In
 its an

n
u

al rep
o

rt to
 th

e 
legislatu

re th
e V

C
B

B
 sh

all rep
o

rt o
n

 th
e ap

p
licatio

n
 o

f 
th

ese p
rio

rities th
ro

u
gh

 an
alysis o

f th
e gran

t fu
n

d
s 

aw
ard

ed
. 

 

(1
)Leverage existin

g 
p

rivate
 reso

u
rces an

d
 

assets, w
ith

 a h
igh

 
p

rio
rity given

 to
 

p
artn

ersh
ip

s b
etw

e
en

 a 
co

m
m

u
n

icatio
n

s u
n

io
n

 
d

istrict an
d

 a 
d

istrib
u

tio
n

 u
tility; 

N
o

 sp
ecific p

o
licy 

req
u

ired
 

 
 N

o
 n

ew
 p

o
licy req

u
ired

. N
o

 ap
p

licatio
n

s h
ave b

een
 

p
resen

te
d

 th
at ad

d
ress th

is p
rio

rity. A
ll gran

t p
ro

jects 
req

u
ire co

llab
o

ratio
n

 w
ith

 d
istrib

u
tio

n
 u

tilities an
d

 are 
su

b
ject to

 P
u

b
lic U

tility C
o

m
m

issio
n

 p
o

le attach
m

en
t 

ru
les. 

 LFC
U

D
: W

e assu
m

e p
rivate reso

u
rces in

clu
d

e e
xistin

g 
in

frastru
ctu

re, o
p

eratio
n

al cap
acity an

d
 e

xp
ertise w

h
ich

 
is p

u
t to

 u
se in

 su
p

p
o

rt o
f a co

n
stru

ctio
n

 gran
t, w

h
eth

er 
a d

istrib
u

tio
n

 u
tility, e

xistin
g p

ro
vid

er o
r o

th
er th

ird
 

p
arty.  

 (2
) D

em
o

n
strate p

ro
ject 

read
in

ess 

 
P

ro
ject R

e
ad

in
ess. In

co
rp

o
rated

 b
y referen

ce in
to

 
B

o
ard

 gran
t acco

u
n

tab
ility p

o
licy at Su

b
sectio

n
 

8
0

8
6

(c)(1
). N

o
te

 th
at b

o
ard

 p
o

licy in
co

rp
o

rates a 

 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

P
o

licy im
p

lem
en

ted
 

 
viab

le b
u

sin
ess p

lan
 as p

art o
f th

e d
em

o
n

stratio
n

 o
f 

p
ro

ject read
in

ess. 

 

(3
) P

ro
vid

e b
ro

ad
b

an
d

 
service th

at co
m

p
lies 

w
ith

 th
e n

et n
eu

trality 
an

d
 co

n
su

m
er 

p
ro

te
ctio

n
 stan

d
ard

s o
f 

3
 V

.S.A
. 34

8
 

C
h

an
ge: Th

is is an
 

o
p

eratio
n

s req
u

irem
en

t 
th

at su
rvives th

e gran
t 

p
ayo

u
t. 

[Th
e statu

s o
f th

e certificatio
n

 p
ro

cess b
y th

e Secretary o
f A

d
m

in
istratio

n
 

p
ro

p
o

sed
 b

y 3
 V

SA
 3

4
8

 (2
0

1
7

) is u
n

kn
o

w
n

.] 
C

o
n

su
m

er Stan
d

ard
s C

ertificatio
n

s. Th
e p

o
licy o

f th
e 

V
C

B
B

, to
 m

eet th
e p

u
b

lic in
te

rest in
 co

n
su

m
er 

p
ro

te
ctio

n
 an

d
 se

rvice stan
d

ard
s, is to

 req
u

ire 
certificatio

n
 o

f each
 gran

tee an
n

u
ally th

at it m
ee

ts th
e 

service co
n

d
itio

n
s d

escrib
ed

 in
 Su

b
sectio

n
 34

8
(b

). Th
e 

gran
te

e rece
ivin

g C
o

m
m

u
n

ity B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 Fu
n

d
s, an

d
 

an
y o

w
n

er o
f assets p

aid
 fo

r in
 p

art b
y su

ch
 fu

n
d

s, 
sh

all certify to
 th

e Secretary o
f A

d
m

in
istratio

n
, w

ith
 

co
p

y to
 th

e V
C

B
B

 o
r its d

esign
ee

, th
e term

s an
d

 
co

n
d

itio
n

s o
f 3

 V
SA

 3
4

8
(b

) fo
r a p

erio
d

 o
f 2

0 years 
fro

m
 th

e d
ate o

f th
e gran

t aw
ard

. 
[N

O
TE: th

is d
o

es n
o

t ad
d

ress m
ain

te
n

an
ce/ cu

sto
m

er 
resp

o
n

se tim
e, e

tc.] 
   LFC

U
D

:  P
rio

rities are asp
iratio

n
al; th

is sp
ecific p

rio
rity 

(se
ctio

n
 3

48
) is an

 o
p

tio
n

al certificatio
n

 p
ro

gram
 th

at 
an

 ISP
 ad

h
eres to

 certain
 stan

d
ard

s.  Sh
o

u
ld

 an
 

ap
p

lican
t co

m
m

it to
 co

m
p

lyin
g th

at sh
o

u
ld

 b
e a p

lu
s. If 

an
 ap

p
lican

t d
o

es n
o

t co
m

m
it, th

en
 th

e V
C

B
B

 can
 

d
ep

rio
ritize th

e gran
t. Th

e p
ro

p
o

sal co
n

verts it in
to

 a 
co

m
p

lian
ce o

b
ligatio

n
 akin

 to
 a regu

latio
n

. It is u
n

clear 
w

h
eth

er V
C

B
B

 h
as au

th
o

rity to
 req

u
ire co

m
p

lian
ce as a 

co
n

d
itio

n
 o

f a gran
t   

 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

(4
)Su

p
p

o
rt lo

w
-in

co
m

e 
o

r d
isad

van
taged

 
co

m
m

u
n

ities; 
C

h
an

ge: Th
is is b

o
th

 a 
d

esign
 an

d
 o

p
eratio

n
s 

req
u

irem
en

t th
at 

su
rvives th

e gran
t 

p
ayo

u
t. 

N
o

 activity su
p

p
o

rts th
is o

b
jective 

Lo
w

 In
co

m
e In

clu
sivity. Th

e p
o

licy o
f th

e V
C

B
B

 is to
 

im
p

lem
en

t U
n

ive
rsal Service as req

u
ired

 b
y th

e A
ct, 

in
clu

d
in

g co
n

stru
ctio

n
 o

f b
ro

ad
b

an
d

 n
etw

o
rks an

d
 

p
ro

visio
n

in
g o

f b
ro

ad
b

an
d

 service to
 all o

n
-grid

 
lo

catio
n

s regard
less o

f in
co

m
e o

r p
ro

p
erty valu

e. N
o

 
co

n
stru

ctio
n

 u
tilizin

g C
o

m
m

u
n

ity B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 Fu
n

d
s 

sh
all avo

id
 lo

catio
n

s b
ased

 o
n

 th
e actu

al o
r p

ro
jecte

d
 

in
co

m
e o

f p
o

te
n

tial cu
sto

m
ers at su

ch
 lo

catio
n

s o
r to

 
ch

o
o

se a d
esign

 to
 o

verb
u

ild
 e

xistin
g service w

h
en

 an
 

efficien
t d

esign
 se

rvin
g lo

catio
n

s m
ay b

e less 
p

ro
fitab

le. 
 

Th
e su

b
m

issio
n

 o
f p

ro
o

f o
f avo

id
in

g lo
catio

n
s th

at 
are reaso

n
ab

ly d
eterm

in
ed

 to
 b

e lo
w

 in
co

m
e to

 th
e 

V
C

B
B

 (o
r o

n
 its o

w
n

 in
vestigatio

n
) m

ay b
e gro

u
n

d
s fo

r 
vio

latio
n

 o
f a gran

t agreem
en

t o
r d

isregard
 fo

r th
e 

p
u

b
lic in

te
rest o

b
ligatio

n
s th

at su
rvive th

e d
u

ratio
n

 o
f 

th
e C

o
m

m
u

n
ity B

ro
ad

b
an

d
 G

ran
t fo

r a p
erio

d
 o

f   
years fro

m
 th

e d
ate o

f th
e gran

t aw
ard

. 
 

 

(5
) P

ro
m

o
te geo

grap
h

ic 
d

ive
rsity o

f fu
n

d
 

allo
catio

n
s. 

 C
h

an
ge: See ab

o
ve 

(P
o

licy statem
en

t fo
r 

h
o

w
 to

 d
eal w

ith
 

Su
b

sectio
n

 (b
)–

 as 
p

ro
p

o
sed

.) 

Th
is p

rio
rity is ad

d
resse

d
 b

y th
e re

gio
n

al allo
catio

n
 o

f gran
t fu

n
d

s b
y C

U
D

. 
SEE p

o
licy p

ro
p

o
sed

 at 8
086

(b
): …

th
e p

o
licy o

f th
e 

V
C

B
B

 is to
 rese

rve an
 allo

catio
n

 fo
r each

 geo
grap

h
ic 

area rep
rese

n
ted

 b
y th

e existin
g C

U
D

s an
d

 to
 

reco
gn

ize an
d

 revie
w

 gran
t ap

p
licatio

n
s in

 th
e co

n
text 

o
f th

o
se allo

catio
n

s as th
ey are p

resen
ted

 an
d

 
d

esign
ated

 b
y th

e V
C

B
B

 as p
ro

ject read
y an

d
 

co
n

sisten
t w

ith
 V

C
B

B
 p

o
licy. 

 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

(6
) P

ro
vid

e co
n

su
m

ers 
w

ith
 affo

rd
ab

le service 
o

p
tio

n
s 

 C
h

an
ge: Th

is is a p
o

licy 
th

at im
p

lem
en

ts an
 

o
p

eratio
n

s p
rio

rity an
d

 
su

rvives th
e gran

t 
p

ayo
u

t. 

Th
is p

rio
rity h

as n
o

t b
ee

n
 ad

d
resse

d
 exce

p
t b

y gen
eralized

 ce
rtificatio

n
 in

 
th

e ap
p

licatio
n

 p
ro

cess. 
A

ffo
rd

ab
le Service P

lan
n

in
g an

d
 R

e
p

o
rtin

g. It is th
e 

p
o

licy o
f th

e V
C

B
B

 to
 req

u
ire b

ro
ad

b
an

d
 service 

p
ro

vid
ers u

tilizin
g assets fu

n
d

ed
 b

y th
e C

o
m

m
u

n
ity 

B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 Fu
n

d
 to

 create
 an

 o
u

treach
 an

d
 e

q
u

ity p
lan

 
fo

r th
e in

clu
sio

n
 o

f lo
w

 in
co

m
e h

o
u

seh
o

ld
s p

rio
r to

 
th

e co
m

p
letio

n
 o

f fu
n

d
ed

 co
n

stru
ctio

n
, an

d
 to

 
p

articip
ate in

 an
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 to

 all co
n

su
m

ers an
y 

ap
p

licab
le su

b
sid

y p
ro

gram
s availab

le to
 red

u
ce 

service co
sts to

 lo
w

 in
co

m
e h

o
u

seh
o

ld
s se

rved
 b

y th
e 

gran
te

e. Th
e gran

tee sh
all an

n
u

ally p
ro

d
u

ce fo
r th

e 
review

 o
f th

e V
C

B
B

 an
 au

d
ite

d
 b

alan
ce sh

eet an
d

 sh
all 

in
clu

d
e (a) th

e rate tiers o
ffered

 to
 co

n
su

m
ers, (b

) th
e 

to
tal n

u
m

b
er o

f cu
sto

m
ers in

 e
ach

 rate tier, (c) th
e 

n
u

m
b

er o
f cu

sto
m

ers fo
r th

at rep
o

rtin
g year receivin

g 
su

b
sid

ies, an
d

 (d
) th

e to
tal am

o
u

n
t o

f su
b

sid
ies 

rece
ived

 fo
r th

at rep
o

rtin
g year.      W

ith
in

 tw
e

lve 
m

o
n

th
s o

f gen
eratin

g reven
u

e fro
m

 b
ro

ad
b

an
d

 se
rvice 

u
tilizin

g asse
ts fu

n
d

ed
 b

y th
e C

o
m

m
u

n
ity B

ro
ad

b
an

d
 

Fu
n

d
 th

at excee
d

 o
p

eratin
g e

xp
en

ses      b
y five 

p
erce

n
t, th

e p
articip

atin
g service p

ro
vid

er sh
all also

 
in

clu
d

e in
 its an

n
u

al rep
o

rt a p
ro

p
o

sal fo
r o

fferin
g 

red
u

ced
 rates to

 q
u

alified
 cu

sto
m

ers. Th
is o

b
ligatio

n
 

o
f th

e gran
t agreem

en
t sh

all su
rvive th

e d
elivery o

f 
gran

t fu
n

d
s fo

r a p
erio

d
 o

f  
 years fro

m
 th

e d
ate o

f 
th

e gran
t aw

ard
. 

 LFC
U

D
:  Fo

r p
u

rp
o

se
s o

f a co
n

stru
ctio

n
 gran

t, 
A

p
p

lican
ts th

at d
em

o
n

strate a co
m

m
itm

en
t to

 
ad

d
ress affo

rd
ab

ility in
 a co

n
crete fash

io
n

 sh
o

u
ld

 b
e 

given
 p

rio
rity.  

 To
 p

ro
vid

e gu
id

an
ce fo

r ap
p

lican
ts, V

C
B

B
 can

 
id

en
tify exam

p
les o

f activities o
r co

m
m

itm
en

ts th
at 

w
o

u
ld

 ad
van

ce affo
rd

ab
ility. A

p
p

lican
ts co

u
ld

 
research

 an
d

 reveal cu
rren

t p
rices an

d
 fee

s in
 th

eir 
fo

o
tp

rin
t, co

m
m

it to
 p

articip
atin

g in
 A

C
P

 o
r o

th
er 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

sim
ilar p

ro
gram

s; co
m

m
it to

 d
evelo

p
in

g p
o

licies o
r 

p
ro

gram
s to

 serve n
eed

-b
ased

 resid
en

ts an
d

 
o

rgan
izatio

n
s; en

gage in
 co

m
m

u
n

ity o
u

treach
 an

d
 

p
artn

er w
ith

 lo
cal stakeh

o
ld

ers to
 p

ro
m

o
te A

C
P

 
en

ro
llm

en
t, d

igital literacy, an
d

 d
igital eq

u
ity.   

 P
rescrib

in
g activities an

d
 affo

rd
ab

ility o
u

tco
m

es ] – 
su

ch
 as d

irectin
g creatio

n
 o

f p
ro

gram
s o

r rep
o

rts 
seem

 to
 b

e gran
t co

n
d

itio
n

s – n
o

t p
rio

rities to
 

assess ap
p

licatio
n

s. Su
ch

 co
n

d
itio

n
s  m

ay ad
d

 risk 
an

d
 strain

 ru
ral b

u
sin

ess m
o

d
els.   

 Th
e V

C
B

B
 can

 d
evelo

p
 in

d
ep

en
d

en
t p

o
licy an

d
 

p
ro

gram
 ad

d
ressin

g d
igital eq

u
ity an

d
 affo

rd
ab

ility, 
an

d
 sh

o
u

ld
 d

o
 so

 th
ro

u
gh

 B
EA

D
 an

d
 su

b
seq

u
en

t 
d

igital eq
u

ity gran
ts.  

 
(7

) In
clu

d
e p

u
b

lic 
b

ro
ad

b
an

d
 asse

ts th
at 

can
 b

e sh
ared

 b
y 

 Th
is p

rio
rity is in

h
eren

t in
 th

e gro
w

th
 an

d
 lin

k b
u

d
get stan

d
ard

s stated
 in

 
th

e O
P

D
 

N
o

 se
p

arate
 p

o
licy is req

u
ired

 given
 th

e 
co

n
stru

ctio
n

/en
gin

ee
rin

g criteria. C
o

n
sid

er, h
o

w
ever, 

 

m
u

ltip
le service 

p
ro

vid
ers an

d
 th

at can
 

su
p

p
o

rt a variety o
f 

p
u

b
lic p

u
rp

o
ses 

 
w

h
eth

er an
 o

p
eratio

n
s p

o
licy th

at im
p

lem
en

ts 
in

te
ro

p
erab

ility an
d

 sh
ared

 in
frastru

ctu
re is ad

vised
? 

  LFC
U

D
:  In

tero
p

erab
ility an

d
 sh

ared
 in

frastru
ctu

re are 
tw

o
 d

ifferen
t co

n
cep

ts. V
C

B
B

 sh
o

u
ld

 see
k in

p
u

t fro
m

  
exp

erts if it m
o

ves fo
rw

ard
 w

ith
 a sep

arate p
o

licy.  
 

 
 

 

Im
p

lied
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility R
e

q
u

irem
en

ts to
 P

ro
te

ct th
e P

u
b

lic In
te

rest 

Legislative Fin
d

in
gs an

d
 In

ten
t 

 

Sectio
n

 8
0

8
1

 
 

 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

(1
)…

 th
e V

erm
o

n
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ity B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 
Fu

n
d

 to
 su

p
p

o
rt p

o
licies 

an
d

 p
ro

gram
s d

esign
ed

 
to

 acce
lerate 

co
m

m
u

n
ity effo

rts th
at 

ad
van

ce th
e State

’s go
al 

o
f ach

ievin
g u

n
iversal 

acce
ss to

 reliab
le, h

igh
- 

q
u

ality, affo
rd

ab
le, fixe

d
 

b
ro

ad
b

an
d

 

Th
e C

o
n

stru
ctio

n
 R

FP
 in

clu
d

es n
u

m
ero

u
s acco

u
n

tab
ility m

easu
res. Th

ese
 

w
e

re in
co

rp
o

rated
 in

to
 b

o
th

 th
e M

ap
le an

d
 So

V
T G

ran
t A

greem
en

ts at 
A

ttach
m

en
t F; So

V
T-A

ttach
m

en
t G

-1
, re

sp
ectively. 

N
am

ed
 A

ct 7
1

 A
ttestatio

n
s req

u
irem

en
t fro

m
 C

o
n

stru
ctio

n
 R

FP
, Sectio

n
 

(I) 

In
 o

rd
er to

 tackle th
e en

o
rm

ity o
f th

e o
b

jectives o
f 

A
ct 7

1
, an

d
 to

 en
su

re acce
leratio

n
 o

f co
m

m
u

n
ity 

b
ro

ad
b

an
d

 e
ffo

rts, th
e V

C
B

B
 h

as ad
o

p
ted

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g p
o

licies fo
r p

u
rp

o
ses o

f C
o

n
stru

ctio
n

 G
ran

t 
aw

ard
s: 

(a) P
rio

ritizatio
n

 o
f O

n
-G

rid
 Lo

catio
n

s. In
 su

p
p

o
rt o

f 
acceleratin

g co
m

m
u

n
ity e

ffo
rts th

at ad
van

ce th
e 

State’s go
al o

f ach
ievin

g u
n

ive
rsal access th

ro
u

gh
 

su
p

p
o

rt o
f gran

tees o
fferin

g a u
n

ive
rsal service p

lan
 

p
u

rsu
an

t to
 Su

b
sectio

n
 8

0
86

(a) an
d

 p
rio

ritizin
g th

e 
u

se o
f e

xistin
g p

rivate reso
u

rce p
u

rsu
an

t to
 8

08
6(b

) 
th

e p
o

licy o
f th

e V
C

B
B

 is to
 p

rio
ritize gran

t fu
n

d
in

g fo
r 

b
ro

ad
b

an
d

 se
rvice to

 lo
catio

n
s th

at are served
 b

y th
e 

electric grid
. 

  

 
 

(b
) P

rio
ritizin

g Fib
er P

lan
t. W

h
ile th

e d
efin

itio
n

 o
f 

fixed
 b

ro
ad

b
an

d
 u

n
d

er th
e A

ct, as am
en

d
ed

, in
clu

d
es 

retail service b
y w

ire o
r rad

io
 th

at d
elivers service at 

sp
eed

s o
f at least 1

0
0/1

00
           gb

p
s, it is th

e p
o

licy 
o

f th
e V

C
B

B
 to

 p
rio

ritize
 th

e fu
n

d
in

g fib
er n

etw
o

rks 
th

at u
se existin

g in
frastru

ctu
re, in

clu
d

in
g th

e u
se o

f 
u

tility p
o

les an
d

 p
o

w
er in

 th
e p

u
b

lic righ
t o

f w
ay, an

d
 

p
ro

vid
e th

e h
igh

est stan
d

ard
 o

f reliab
ility, resilien

ce 
an

d
 in

tero
p

erab
ility to

 accelerate th
e d

elivery o
f 

b
ro

ad
b

an
d

 service. R
ad

io
 fixe

d
 w

ireless is an
 

accep
tab

le m
ean

s o
f d

eliverin
g b

ro
ad

b
an

d
 se

rvice 
w

h
ere it m

eets th
e V

C
B

B
’s stan

d
ard

s fo
r 

acco
u

n
tab

ility fo
r th

e p
u

b
lic in

te
rest, in

clu
d

in
g b

u
t n

o
t 

lim
ited

 to
 reliab

ility, resilien
cy, an

d
 in

tero
p

erab
ility. 

 

 
 

V
C

B
B

 B
o

ard
 w

ill n
o

t acce
p

t se
lf-certificatio

n
 b

y th
e 

ap
p

lican
t o

r gran
tee to

 e
stab

lish
 acco

u
n

tab
ility fo

r th
e 

p
u

b
lic in

te
rest o

b
ligatio

n
s o

f co
n

stru
ctio

n
 an

d
 

o
p

eratio
n

 o
f assets p

aid
 fo

r in
 w

h
o

le o
r in

 p
art 



Tab
le

 o
f P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

cco
u

n
tab

ility P
o

licie
s - Ju

ly 1
2

, 2
0

2
3

 
  

C
o

m
m

u
n

ity B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 Fu
n

d
. 

(2
) to

 estab
lish

 th
e 

 
Th

e A
gen

cy o
f A

d
m

in
istratio

n
 o

f th
e State o

f V
erm

o
n

t, 

V
erm

o
n

t C
o

m
m

u
n

ity 
in

 its o
p

in
io

n
 regard

in
g th

e C
reatio

n
 o

f B
ro

ad
b

an
d

 
B

ro
ad

b
an

d
 B

o
ard

 to
 

P
ro

gram
s U

sin
g Fed

eral Fu
n

d
s, d

ated
 M

arch
 1

3
, 20

23
, 

co
o

rd
in

ate
, facilitate, 

h
as d

ete
rm

in
ed

 th
at n

ew
 p

ro
gram

s fu
n

d
ed

 th
ro

u
gh

 

su
p

p
o

rt, an
d

 accele
rate 

th
e fe

d
erally fu

n
d

ed
 B

EA
D

 gran
ts are su

b
ject to

 th
e 

th
e d

evelo
p

m
en

t an
d

 
p

o
licies an

d
 p

ro
ced

u
res o

f th
e V

C
B

B
 B

o
ard

. Th
e V

C
B

B
 

im
p

lem
en

tatio
n

 o
f 

B
o

ard
 w

ill ap
p

ly its existin
g p

o
licies as p

o
ssib

le an
d

 

u
n

ive
rsal co

m
m

u
n

ity 
d

evelo
p

 n
ew

 p
o

licies as req
u

ired
. Su

b
gran

t p
ro

gram
s 

b
ro

ad
b

an
d

 so
lu

tio
n

s. 
u

n
d

er B
EA

D
 o

r D
EI fed

erally fu
n

d
ed

 p
ro

gram
s w

ill b
e 

 
su

b
ject to

 p
o

licy review
 b

y th
e V

C
B

B
 B

o
ard

. 
  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      


	VCBB Board Packet for 07-28-2023-updated.pdf
	VCBB Board Packet for 07-28-2023-updated.pdf
	Agenda_07.28.23
	Binder1.pdf
	VCBB Board Packet for 07-28-2023.pdf
	Accountability Policy Comments (1)
	Accountability Policy Comments.pdf
	VCUDC Comments on Policy Draft
	VCUDA July 25 VCBB Letter
	NEK Broadband comments on Accountability Policy
	NEK Broadband comments on VCBB Accountability Policy July 25 2023
	ECFiber comments regarding VCBB policy discussion
	2023 VCBB Accountability Policies - Comments from SoVt CUD
	VCBB Draft Accountability Policies - CCI Comments 7.25.23
	Lamoille FiberNet Letter and Comments on VCBB Draft Policies
	LFCUD Letter to VCBB Policy Changes
	VCBB ACCOUNTABILITY POLICIES - FOR BOARD REVIEW - LFCUD comments



	OCCUD Letter to VCBB Re draft policy


	VCBF Grant Clawback Concerns -ECFiber attachment

	RE_ Accountability Working Groups.pdf



